Anadolu Isuzu Otomotiv
Sanayi ve Ticaret A.S. and

Its Subsidiary

Consolidated Financial Statements
as at 31 December 2018 and
Independent Auditor’s Report

Digitally signed by Chele-Bratunov Natali
Date: 2021.04.01 11:09:45 EEST
Reason: MoldSign Signature
Location: Moldova

If (CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF
GYNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH)




= DRT Bagimsiz Denetirm ve
eloitte b Mesabe
@ Mali Milgavirbk AS.
Maslak nol Plaga
Eski Birylikdere Caddes|
Maslak Mahallesi Mol

Maslal, Saryer 34485
istanbul, Tiirkiye

Tel @ +80{212) 366 6000
Fape - +20(212) 366 6010
wavw deloitte.com.tr

Mersis Mo: 0291 001097600016
Tecari Sicil Mo : 304099

(CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the General Assembly of Anadolu [suzu Otomotiv ve Ticaret A.S.

A)  Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

1}  Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Anadolu Isuzu Otomotiv ve Ticaret A.5. (“the
Company"”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group™), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018, and its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Turkish Financial
Reporting Standards (TFRS).

2)  Basls for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing issued by Capital Markets Board
and the Standards on Independent Auditing (“SIA™) which is a part of Turkish Auditing Standards
published by the Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority (“POA"). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor 's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the Code of Ethics for Independent Auditors ("Code of Ethics") published by the POA,
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

3)  Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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3 Key Audit Matters (cont’d)

Key Audlt Matter

How the matter ‘I;r!s addressed in the aundit

Deferred Tax Assets Calculated over Previous Years'
Tax Losses and R&D Incentives

According to the Turkish Tax Legislation, financial
losses stated in the declaration can be deducted from
the profit of the company for the period providing not
exceeding 5 years. Total financial losses of the Group
transferring as of 31 December 2018 is 135,749
thousand TL, and 32,718 thousand TL of this amount
is 2016 financial loss, 30,491 thousand TL of this
amount is 2017 and the remaining 72,540 TL is 2018
financial loss.

As stated in Note 24 related to consolidated financial
statements, The Group recognised 26,242 thousand
TL of deferred tax asset calculated on previous years'
tax losses as of 31 December 2018,

Besides the previous years’ tax losses, the Group has
carried forward R&D expenses which subjects to
determination of taxable profit. Total amount of
abovementioned B&D expenses is 101,193 thousand
TL which has expiry date of 31 December 2023,

As stated in Note 24 related to consolidated financial
statements, The Group recognised 20,239 thousand
TL of deferred tax asset calculated on R&D expenses
as of 31 December 2018.

Partially or wholly recoverable amount of calculated
deferred tax assets is estimated by the Group
Management according to assumptions under current
cireumstances. During the estimation, future business
plans, losses in the last 5 years and due dates of
unused losses are considered. To what extent the
agsels in question can be recognized depends on the
estimations of the Group Management, therefore
these assets are evaluated as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures applied in this field include
the issues below:

® To evaluate and investigate the assumptions
and jodgements used in determination of
future taxable earning estimations together
with sensitivity analyses by analysing
assumptions made by the Group Management;

® To evaluate wvalidity and acceptability of
assumptions made by the Group Management;

e To consider the effect of adjustments in the
legislation if required; and

e To reconcile amounts and expiry dates of
utilisable previous years” tax losses with lax
declarations;

o To evaluate whether the disclosures in
consolidated  financial  statements  for
applications of judgements used in the
estimations of deferred tax assets stated or not
stated in the consolidated financial statements
include the deferred tax position according 1o
TAS provisions.
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4)  Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with TFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concemn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with govemnance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
5)  Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financinl Statements
Responsibilities of independent auditors in an independent audit are as follows:

Our objectives are 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with the standards on auditing issued by Capital Markets Board and SIA
will always detect a matenial misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can anse from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the standards on auditing issued by Capital Markets Board and
SIA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consclidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or emor, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those nsks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion (The risk of
not detecting a malerial misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control)

¢  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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s  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainly exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 1o draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

s  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

¢«  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with govemnance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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B} Reporton Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with paragraph four of the Article 398 of the Turkish Commercial Code No. 6102 (*TCC™),
the auditor’s report on the system and the committee of early detection of risk has been submitted to the
Board of Directors of the Company on 5 March 2019.

In accordance with paragraph four of the Article 402 of TCC, nothing has come to our atiention that may
cause us to believe that the Group’s set of accounts and financial statements prepared for the period |
January-31 December 2018 does not comply with TCC and the provisions of the Company's articles of
association in relation to financial reporting.

In accordance with paragraph four of the Article 402 of TCC, the Board of Directors provided us all the
required information and documentation with respect to our audit.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Burg Seven.

DRT BAGIMSIZ DENETIM VE SERBEST MUHASEBECI MAL!I MUSAVIRLIK A.S.
Member of DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU LIMITED

Burg Seven, SMMM

Partner

Istanbul, 5 March 2019
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ANADOLU ISUZU OTOMOTIV SANAYIQ VE TICARET A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARY FPage Mao: 1
AUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

{Amounis expressed in Turkish Liva unless otherwise indicated )

Current Period Prior Period
Moles 31 December 2018 31 UDecember 20117
ASSETS
Current Assets 949,258,343 818,303,047
Cash and cash equivalents 4 a6, 506,029 a8, 468,892
Trade receivables 238,883,170 325,294,511
Trade receivables from related parties 6,26 8,021,207 2,344 615
Trade receivables from third parties B 230,861,963 322 949 996
Other receivables
Other recaeivables from third parties 7 41,324,118 892 845
Inventories 8 481,522 347 337,266,267
Prepaid expenses 15 22,340,485 15287, 737
MAssets related to current tax 24 835,831 927,758
Other current assets 15 67 446 358 40,185 237
Mon-Current Assets 656,609,868 B35, 180,946
Other receivablas
Dher receivablas from third parties 7 186 186
Froperty, plant and equipmeant 9 BE0.648 627 G5B9, 283 614
Intangible assets 03 801,876 G5 883 413
Goodwill 11 2,340,895 2,340,995
Other intangibla assets 10 21,580,881 £3,542 418
Prepaid expenses 15 2,058 1789 13,733

TOTAL ASSETS 1,60%5,868,211 1.453,483,993




ANADOLI ISUZU OTOMOTIV SANAYI VE TICARET A8, AND ITS SUBSIDIARY Paze No: 2
AUINMTED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCTAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 20138
fAdmounty expressed in Turkish Lira unfess otherwise indicaied )
Current Period Prior Period
Motes 31 December 2018 31 December 2017
LIABILITIES
Current Liahilities 916,674,974 555,098,693
Short-Term Borrowings 5 f52 303,318 243,675,134
Trade Payables 320,286,971 296,879 348
Trade Payables to Related Parties 6,26 109,509 365 209,917,665
Trade Payables to Third Parties (4] 210,777,565 B6,961.681
Other Payahles Q87 867 1,180,512
Other Payables to Related Partios 26 9109 2109
Other Payables to Third Parties T 978,758 1,171,403
Fayables Related to Employes Benefils 7 &,115,190 4531279
Deferred Income 15 20,745 708 30,505,046
Short-Term Provisions
Short-Term Provisions for
Employee Benefits 14 843195 3,107,996
Other Short-Tenm Provisions 13 14,382,775 15,319,380
Mon-Current Liahilities 132,272,351 230,259,282
Lang-Term Borrowings 5 a0,420,000 189,175, 667
Deferred Income 15 11,436,255 B4 247
Lang-Term Provisions for Employes Benefits 14 23,885,435 19,448,903
Defarred Tax Liability 24 3,530,661 20,992 465
EQUITY 557,920,886 628,126,018
Equity Attributable to Owners of the Company 557,920,386 628,126,018
Share Capital 16 84,000,000 84,000,000
Adjustments to Shara Capital 16 30,149,425 30,149 426
Other Comprahansive Incomea (Expenses) That Will Mot
Be Reclazsified in Profit or Loss
Revaluation and Remeasurement Earmings (Losses) 409,107,297 412,086 655
- Increase in Remaasurement of Property, Plant
and Equipmant 417,373,045 447,373,045
- Rameasuremant of Defined Benafit Plans
(Losses) 16 {8,265, 748) {5, 286,390}
Rastricted Reserves Appropriated from Profit 16 162,221 926 162,175,629
Prior Years' ProfitLosses 16 (60,331 289 (11,857, 328)
Met ProfitfLoss for The Year 16 (67,225, 7743 (48,388,364)

Mon-Controlling Interests -

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,605,868,211

1,453,483,993

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated {inancial st lemenlg.y




ANADOLU ISUZLU OTOMOTIV SANAYI VE TICARET A5, AND ITS SUBSIDIARY Page No: 3
AUNITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIODS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 AND 2017
{Amounis expressed in Tweldsl Liva unless otherwise indicaied)
Current Period Prior Pariod
1 January- 1 January-
Motoes 31 December 2018 31 December 2017
PROFIT OR LOSS
Revenue 17 1,187 862 7485 053 125 462
Cost of Sales {-) 17 (854 B34,345) {8358,161,220)
GROSS PROFITILOSS) 193,028,440 124,564,542
Administrative Expenszes {-) 18 {47,9865,122) {41,670,453)
Marketing Expenses {-) 12 {77,505318) (67 465, 058)
Research and Development Expenses (-) 18 (2,908,365) 13,192 545)
Other Income from Oparating Activities a0 102 483 080 24,818,878
Other Expenses from Operating Activities {-) 20 (118,462, 25%) {35,047 361}
COPERATING PROFIT/LOSS) 48,670,438 2,108,003
income from Investing Activities 2 728,273 165,402
Expenses from Investing Activities (-) 21 (205,352} (278,384}
OPERATING PROFIT/{LOSS) BEFORE FINANCE INCOME
Exeensg o 18801
' Finanee Income 22 AB,379,474 35,315,170
Finance Expenses (- 23 {218,149,807) {105,608 878)
P e TN S g
Tax Incomel{Expense) From Continuing Operations 13,454,180 15,904,33.3
Currenl Tax (Expense) Incarme 24 (262, 785) {136,2658)
Deferred Tax (Expense) Income ) 24 13,716,965 20,040,588
SRPE;E:J"{:E}?Q%S] FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING (67,226,774) (48,388,364)
PROFITHLOSS) FOR THE YEAR (67,225,774) (48,388,364)
Profit/{Loss) for the Year Attributable to: 16 (67,225,774) (48,388,364)
Cwvners of The Company 16 (B7,2325,774) (48,388,364)
Earnings/(Losses) Per 100 Share from Continuing Operations 25 (D.BO03) (0.5761)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / (EXPENSE)
Items That Will Mot Be Reclassified Subseguently to Profit or
Loss
Gain (Loss) on Remeasurement of Property, Plant and Equipment 9 - 473,400,611
Gain (Loss) on Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans 14 (3,724,197) (4,154,043}
Gain (Loss) on Remeasurement of Property, Plant and Equipment,
Tax Effact 24 - (56,027 ,568)
Gain (Loss) on Bemeasurament of Defined Benefit Plans, Tax Effect 24 44,859 830,809
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (EXPENSE) (2,978,358} 414,049,811
TOTAL COMPREEHENSIVE INCOME (EXPENSE) (70,205,132) 365,661,447
Mon-Controlling Interests - -
Owners of The Company (70.206,132) 365,661,447

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial :




ANADOLU ISUZU OTOMOTIV SANAYI VE TICARET A5, AND ITS SURSIDIARY

ATIDMTED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW
FORTHE PERTODS ENDED 31 DECEMBLER 2018 AND 2017
(A monts expressed in Turkish Liva unlezss otherwise r'ndr':.‘.-rrec_.ﬁ L

Page Mo: 4

Profit (Loss) for The Year

Equipment .
Changes in Working Capital

Operations

Operations

Income Tax Returns (Paid)

Interest Received
Interast Paid
Froceeds from Loans

1 January - 1 January -
31 December 31 December
o ~Motes 2018 2017
Cash Flows from Operating Activities B 11,754,575) 18,995,551
“Profit ( 16 (67,225,774) _ (48,388,364)
Adjustments to Reconcile Profit (Loss) for The Year 182,085,106 84,443,890
Adiustments Related to Depreciation and Amortization Expensas 9,10 33,832,262 24,033,458
Adjustments Related to Provision for Employee Benefits (Relsased) 14 4,005,584 4,085,237
Adjustrments Related to Tax (Income) Expense 24 (13.454,180) (19.904,323)
Adjustments Helated to Interest Incomes 22 i11.474,808) {9.431,568)
Adjustments Related to Interest Expenges 23 A8, 507 578 31,244,319
Adjustments Related fo Unrealized Currency Transglation Diffarances 110,252 333 47 183,600
Other Adjustments to PrefitfLoss) Reconciliation 736,274 6,424,185
Adjustments Related to Loss (Gain) on Disposal of Property, Plant and 21 (419,941) 108,992
(112.221.942) {13,274,266)
Adjustments Related to Decrease {Increase) in Trade Receivables 82,054,841 (42 265,803)
Adjustments Related to Decrease (Increase) in Inventories 8 (144 656,075) (52,150,548)
Adjustments Related to Decrease (Increase) in Other Receivablas from 716,24 (14,673,425) (23,247 576)
Adjustments Related to !ncrease (Decrease) in Trade Payables 23,231,608 84 873,400
Adjustments Related to Inrerease (Decrease) in Other Payables from 3 866,455 71,218,790
Adjustmants Ralated to Decrease (Increase) in Other Assats fram Operations (2,045 448) {41,802_229)
Cash Generated from Operations 2,637,380 22,781,260
{1,008 616) (1,064,023)
Fayments to Provision of Employee Benefits 14 (3,283 348) (2,721 606)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities (52,895,797) (33,214,345)
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 8,21 2,373,134 244 022
Paymenits for Purchase of Proparty, Plant and Equipment 9 (13,475,238) {9,522 ,095)
_Payments for Furchase of Intangibla Assets - 10 (41,793,683) (23,938,272}
Cash Flows from Financing Activities 52,774,399 (7,065,823)
11,561,754 9 555 H53
(49 BE0,395) (28,712,576)
A01,501,800 165,965,100
Cash Outflows from Repayment of Loans (410,429 800) {153 875,000}
Met Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (1,875,973) {21,284, 717)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at The Beginning of The Year 4 98, 357,461 _11 9,642,178
4 36.4%5.408 98,357,461

Cash and Cash Equivalents at The End of The Year

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these conselidated linancial stalemens,
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ANADOLU ISUZU OTOMOTIV SANAYI VE TICARET A.S. AND I'TS SUBSIDIARY Page No: 6
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NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND OPERATIONS OF TITE GROUP

Anadolu lsurzu Otomotiv Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim $icketi (the “Company™) was established in | 980, Principal activities
of the Company are comprised mainly of manufacturing, assembling, import and sales of commercial vehicles and also
procure and sales of related spare parts regarding to after sales service. The Company is registered to Capital Markets
Board ol Turkey and the percentage of 15 ol the Company’s shares liave been traded on Borsa Istanbul A%, since 1997,

The Company carries out its operations as a parinership formed by Tsuzu Motors Led., Hochu Corperation and Anadolu
Group Companies. The Company runs its manufacluring operations in-a factory which is established in Cayirova/kocaeli.
The average number of employees as of 31 December 2018 is 802 (31 December 2017; 875},

The Company, has been repistered in Turkey, and the address of the Company is Fatih Sultan Mehmet Maballesi Balkan
Caddesi No 58 Buyaka E Blok Tepeilstl Umraniye, Tstanbul.

The main shureholder and the controlling party of the Company is Anadolu Ciroup Holding Anonim Sirkeli.

As of 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, details about the company®s subsidiary, which is subject to consolidation, is
below:

31 December 31 December

3 ; FR e i 2018 07
Company Name Principal Activity Capital PiFticipation Participation
Rate (%) Rate (%)
Anl Sinai ve Ticari Uriinleri Pazarlama A8, Trade of spare parts 716,000 L0000 10000

Approval of Financial Statements

Consolidated financial statements for the periad | January — 31 December 2018 approved by the Board of Direclors on 5
March 2019 and signed by Independent Member of the Board of Director Ahmel Orhan OZLE (Andit Committee
Chairman) and Alunet Murat SELEK (Audit Committee Member), General Manager Yusuf Tugrul ARTKAN and Finance
Directar Fatma Aksoy OZEK.

The Company and its subsidiary will be referred as (the “Group™) in the consolidated financial statements and notes to the
consalidaled linancial statements,

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2.1 HRasis of presentation

21,1 Statement of Compliance TAS

The enclosed consolidated [inancial statements have heen preparcd in line with Capital Markets Board (“CMB™),
Communiqué Serial: IT, Mo, 14. ] on *Principles on Financial Reporting in Capital Market”, promulgated in Official Gazette
Mo, 28676 dated 13 June 2013, Pursuant to Article 5 ol the Communiqué, Turkish Accounting Standards / Turkish Financial
Beporting Standards (*“TAS/TFRS™) enforced by Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Autharity ("T'OA™),
and Lheir relevant appendices and inferprelations (“TASSTTRS™) have been talen as basic.

Ly addition, the financial statements and disclosures are presented in aceordance with the publication by CMB dated 7 June
2013,

The Company (and its Subsidiary registered in Turkey) takes the Turkish Commercial Code (*TCC™), tax |egislation and
Uniform Chart of Accounts introduced by Turkish Ministry of Finance as basic for book keeping and preparation of the
statutory financial statements, Consolidated financial statements have been prepared in Turkish Lira based on the historical
costs, a5 well as the [inancial assets and liabilities presented in their Gair values. Llistorical eosts are generally based on the
[air value of the amount paid for (he assets. Consolidated financial statements have been arranged by applying the required
adjustments and classifications to the statutory records prepared on historical cost basis in order lo provide accurate
presentation in line with TAS/IFRS. The most important adjustment records are the application of consolidation
agcounting, deferred tax caleulation, calculation of employee termination benefit and other provisions,

Corrency Used

The financial slatements of the (roup’s cach enlity are presented in the currency of the primary cconomic environment in
which the entity operales (its functional currency). The results and linancial position of the each entity ageexpressed in TL,
which iz the functional curreney ol the Company and the currency used for presenting consolidated fin :%ial statcments.
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NOTE 2 -BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {cont’d)

21 Basis of Preseotation (cont’d)

2.1.2  Consolidation principles
Subsidiarics

Subsidiarics, including structured eotitics, dre companies in the Group's conlrol, The Group's contrel is provides for
exposure to variable returns from these companies, being eligible for these benefits, and the power o direct them.
Subsidiaries are consolidated using the full consalidation method starting from the date when the control is transferred to
the Group. They are excluded from the seope ol conselidation as ol the date when the control is lost

The purchasing method is used in accounting for group business combinations. The cost of acquisition includes the fair
value of'the assets transferred at the sequisition date, the ligbiliies incurred by the former owner ol the company, and costs,
consisting of equity instruments issued by the Group, The acquisition cost includes the fair value of the assets and habilitics
translerred g5 1 resull of the contingent acquisition agreement.

The identilable assels, liabililies, and contingent liabilities taken over during a business combination are measured at their
fair value on the acquisition dace, For each purchasze, non-controlling shares of the acquired company are recognised cither

at their fair value or according to their proportional share in the net assets of the acquired company.

The table below sels oul the subsidiaries and their ownership interests as of 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017,

Voting power held Proportion of ownership
by the Group (%) interest (%)
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
Subsidiary 2018 2017 2018 2017
Ant Sinai ve Ticari Uriinleri Pazarlama AS. [(h3.00 [ (k0.0 [ 0.00 [00.00

2.1.3  Adjustment of Financial Statements During High Inflation Periods

In accordance with CMD's decision nmmbered 117357 on 17 March 2003, inflation accounting application has heen
aholished as of | January 2005 for the companics operaling in Turkey and preparing [inancial slatements in accordance
with Turkey Accounting Standards. Accordingly, as of | January 2005 “Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary
Economiss™ (TAS 293 has not been applied.

.14 Olfseltling

The financial assets and liabilitics in the consolidated financial statements are shown at their net value when a legal granted
permission, an intention of stating the consolidated financial statements with their net values and the financial assct and
liabililies are arisen concurrently,

2.1.5 Comparatives and Adjustment of Prior Periods’ Finaneial Statements

The Gronp's consolidated financial statcments for the cwrent period are prepared in comparizon with the previous periods
in arder to be ahle to determine the financial position and performance trends. The comparative information 15 reclassilicd
when necessary with the aim of ensuring consistency with the presentation of the current period's consolidated financial
statements and signilicant dillerences are disclosed. In the current period, the Group has made some reclassifications in
prior perind financial statements. The nature, reason and amounts of the classilications are cxplained below:

In 2017 the Group has presented “advances given lor inventory™ amounting to TL 10,334,103 under current assets in the
financial statement. Tn the current vear, the Group management has classified these HL!VHH{:ES under “Peepaid Expenses™.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont*d)
11 Basis of Presentation {contcd)

2.1.6 Amendments in Standards and Interpretations

New and amended Turkish Financial Reporting Standards that are effective as of 20018
TIRS 9 Financial Instruments

The Group has applied TFRS 9 “Financial Instriments™ which replaces TAS 39 as of the first application date of 1 January
2018. This application includes the requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities,
as well as the éxpected credit risk model to replace the currently used impairment model. The Group has carried out
evaluation studies to determine the cumulative impact of the first adoption and concluded that it has no significant impact
on the consolidated linancial slatements,

Classification and measurement of financial assets

Crroup classifics s finanacial asscts in three categories of financial assets measured at amortised cost, financial assets
measured at fair value throngh other comprehensive income and financial aseets weasured at fair value through profil or
loss. The classification of linancial assets i determined considering the entity’s business model for managing the financial
assels and the contractuzal cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. The appropriate classification of financial assets
is determined at the time of the purchase,

“Financial assects measurcd at amortised cost™, are non-derivative assets that are held within a business model whaose
ohjective is to hold assets in order to collect contractval cash flows and the contractual lerms of the (nancial assels give
rise on specified dates to cash fows thal are solely payments of principal and intercst on the prineipal amount oulstanding.
Group's financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise “cash and cash equivalents” and “trade receivahles™.
Financial assets carried at amortized cost are measured at their fair value at initial recognition and by effective intersst rate
method at subsequent measurements. Gains and losses on valuation ol non-derivalive financial assets measured at
amortized eost arc accounted for under the consolidated statement of income,

“Financial assels measured at fair value through olher comprehensive income”, are non-derivative assels that are held
within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets
and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise an specified dates 1o cash lows that are solely payments of principal
and inlerest on the principal amount oulslanding. Gains or losses on a linancial asset measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive income, except for impairment 2aing ar losses and foreign
exchange pains and lnsses until the financial asset is derecognised or reclassilied. When the [inancial asset is derecognised
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other compreliensive income is reclassificd Lo retained carnings.

“Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss™, are assets that ave nol measured al amortised cost or al fair
vatlue through other comprehensive income. Gaing and losses on valuation of these financial assets are accounted for under
the consolidated statement of income. Changes rezarding the classification of financial assers and liabilities in terms of
TURS 9 ave summarised below. Related changes in classification do not resull in changes in measurement of the loancial
assels and liabilities,
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCTAL STATEMENTS (cont™d)

2.1 Basis of Mresentation (cont*d)
2.1.6  Amendments in Standards and Interpretations (cont’d)
New and amended Turkish Financial Reporting Standards that arve effective as of 2018 (cont’d)

TFRS 9 Financial Instroments {cont*d)

Financial assets Prior classification under TAS 39 Prior classification under TFRS 9
Cash and cash eyuivalents Loans and receivables Amortized cost

Trade receivables Loans and veceivablcs Amortized cost

Reeeivables from velated parties  Loans and receivables Amartized cost

Merivative tinancial asscts Fair value through profitor oss Fair value theough prodit or loss
Finaneial liabilitics Prior classification nnder TAS 39 Frior classification under TIVRS 9
Drerivative financia] lishilities Fair value through prodil or loss Fair value through profit ar loss
Taares Armoriized cost Amoriised cost

Irade pavahles Amortized cosl Amortived cosl

Impairment

“The expeeted credit loss model” in TFRS 9 “Linancial Instruments” standard has been defined instead of “realized eredit
losses model™ in TAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurament” which was effeetive until 1 January 2018,
The expected cradit Tosses arc a weighted estimate of the probability of loan losses over the expected liti: of a linancial
instrument. In the calculation of the expected credil losses, both the Group's future estimales and past loan loss experiences
are taken into account.

TIRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group has applied “TFRS 15 Revenue from Customer Contracts™, which replaces “TAS 13 Revenue” starting from |
January 2018, In this conlext, the retrospective cffect of upplying the standard for the first Ume is disclosed under
“Comparative Information and Restatement of Prior Peried Financial Slalements™

Revenue

The Group recoecuizes the revenue by transierring a committed product or service o ils customers and when or as the
p recot y : p .
perfarmance obligation is fullilled. When or as an assct is contraled by the customer, the asset is transferred.

Under TFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers™ effective as ol 1 January 2018 the Group recognizes the revenue
in accordance with the following five fundamental prineiples:

s Identify the contracts with a customer,

s ldentify the performance obligations in the contract,

o Detormine the transaction price,

s Allocate the fransaction price to the performanee obligations in the contract,
= Recosnize the revenue.

I'he Giroup evaluates the goods or services committed on the contract with the customer and defines each commitment
given o be transferred to the customer as a performance obligation.

The Group considers Lhe lerms of the contract and business practices to determine the transaclion price. The transaction
price is the amount that the Group expects to eam in return fir the transfer of goods or services to the cuslomer, excluding
the amounts collected on hehalf ol third parties {e.a, certain sales taxes).




ANADOLI ISUZU OTOMOTIV SANAYI VE TICARET A.S, AND ITS SUBSIDIARY Fage Mo: 10
NOTES TO THE AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT'S

FOR THE PERIOD ENDLED 31 DECEMBER 2018

{Amennts expressed in Dwrkish Liva unless athevwise indicated )

NOTE 2 = BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd)
2.1 Basis of Presentation (cont’d)

2.1.6 Amendments in Standards and Interpretations (cont’d)
Wew and amended Turkish Financial Reporting Standards that ave effective as of 2018 {cont’d)
TFRS 15 Revenue from Contraces with Customers (cont'd)

If the sum of the salc price of the gowds or services exceeds the value committed in the contract, the cuslomer receives a
discount for the purchase of the goods or services. The Group distributes the discount in a proportionate manner (o all
perlormance obligations in the contract, except where there arc observable indicators that the discount is related to only
one or some of the performance obligalions.

For cach performance abligation, it is determined at the heginning of the contract thal il the performance abligation will
he fulfilled in time or al a cerlain tme. When a performance obligation is satisfied by transfeming promised goods or
services 10 a costomer, the Group recognises the revenue as Lhe amount of the transaction price that is allocated to that
performance obligation. The goods or services are rransferred when the control ol the goods or services is deliverad to the
clstomers,

Fallowing indicators are vonsidered while evaluating the transfer of control of the goods and services:

e Presence of Group’s collection right of the consideralion [or the goods or services,

= Customer's ownership of the legal title on gnods or services,

Physical transtor of the goods or services,

Cnstomer’s owmership of significant risks and rewards related to the goods or services,
e {Customer’s acceptance of goods or services.

Amendments to TEVRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-Based Payment Transactions

The amendments clarify the standard in respect of the share-based payement arrangement has a “nel settlement feature”
such an artangement should he classificd as cquity-seitled in ils entirety, providad that the share-based payment would
lhave been classified as equity-settled had it not included the nel seltlement feature. Amendments to TFRS 2 have no impact
on the Group’s linancial stalements,

Amendments to TAS 40 Trausiers of Investment Property:

The amendments to TAS 40: amends paragraph 57 to state that an eolily shall wansfer a property to, or from, investment
property when, and only when, there is evidence of a change in use. A change ol wse oceurs il property meets, or ceases to
meel, the deflinition of investment praperty. A change in management’s inlentions for the use of a property by itself docs
not constilute evidence of a change inuse, A detailed list of the evidence referred 1o in parageaph 37 between (a) and (d)
las been amended as a list of examples.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCTAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
2.1 Basis of Presentation (cont’d)

2.1.6  Amendments in Standards and Interpretations (eont’d)

New and amended Turkish Financial Reporting Standards that are cffective as of 2018 (cont™d)
Annual Tmprovements to 2014-2016 Cycle:

TFRS 1 "First-time adoption of Turkish financial reporting standards” has aholished the shore-term exceptions during the
first-time adoption of TERS 7, TAS 19 and TFRS 10.

TAS 28: Clarifies that the electian to measure at fair value through profit or loss an investment in an associale or a joint
venture that is held by an entity that is a venturc capilal organization, or other qualifying entity, is available lor each
investinent in an associate or joint venure on an investment-by-investment basis, upon imitial recognition. Annual
improvemens to TFRS Standards 2014-2016 eycle have no impact on th Gronp’s financial statements.

TFRS Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration:
The interpretation addresses foreign currency transactions ov parts of transactions where;

o There is consideration that is denominated or priced in a foreign currency;

s The entity recognizes a prepayment asset or a deferred income Liability in respect of that consideration, in advance
of the recognition of the related asset, expense or income; and

s The prepayment asset or deferred income liability is non- monetary.

The Interpretations Commillee came to the following conclusion:

e The date of the transaction, lor Uie purpose of delermining the exchange rate, is the date of initial recognition of
lie non-monetary prepayment asset or deferred income liability.

o I lhere are multiple payments or reccipls in advance, a date of Lransaction is established for each payment o
receipt..

Mew and revised TERS Standards in issue but not vet

At the date of authorisation of these linancial statements, The Group has nol applied the following new and reviscd IFRS
Standards that have been jssued but are not yet effective:

TERS 16 Legsest

Amendments to TAS 28 Long-teror Inferests in Associates and Joint Fentures'

TFRS luterpreration 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'

Amendments to TERS 10 and TAS 28 Sule or Contribution of Assets between an lnvestor and ils
Asvociaie or Joint Venture

Amendmenis fo TS 19 Amendmens to Employee Benefits'

Annual Inprovements to 20152017 Cyele Amendmetns to TERS 3, 1FRS M, TAS 12 and 145 23

| Elferctive trom periods onor after | fanuary 20105,

The Group management, do not expeet that the adoption of the Standards listed above will have a material impact on
the financial statements of the Group in future perinds, excepl as noted helow.
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NOTE 2 - BASES OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
21 Basis of Presentation {cont’d)

216 Amendments in Standards and Interpretations (cont'd)

New and amended Turkish Financial Reporting Standards that are effective as of 2018 {cont’d)

TFRS 16 Leases

TFRS 16, *Leases’ is effective [rom annual periods beginning on or after | Tanuary 20109, with carlier application permitted
il TFRS 15°Revenue from Contracts with Customers® is also applied. The new standard replaces existing TMS 17 guidance
and eliminates the separation of operating leasing and financial leasing. Thus, operaling leases that are oll balance sheet
according (o TAS 17 ave combined with financial leases under a single model. The TASB provides an exception for short-
termt leases of lessee (with a leasing period of 12 months or less) and leases of low-valued assets. Vor lessors, the accountitng
stays almost the same,

Under TFRS 16, a contract is, or containg, a lease if the contract conveys the right to contral the use of an identilied assei
for a period of time in exchange for consideration, The Group’s study related with such standards is still in process. The
lessee shall recognize the lease liabilities and the right to use assets over the present value of unpaid lease payments. T.ease
payiments will be discounted vsing this rate if the implied interest rate in the lease can be easily deteninined. [n case the
lessee cannot easily determine this ratio, the lessee™s allernative borrowing interest rate will be used. The lessee should
separalely recognize the inlerest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense that the asset utilization right
has allocated tor the lease period.

The Group bas starled compliance studies lor this standard that will be cffective as of | Tanuary 2019,
Amendments (o TAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Venture

This amendment clarifies that an entity applies TFRS 9 Financial lostruments 1o long-term inlerests in an assoeiale or joint
venture that form pare of the net investment in the associale or juinl venture bul to which the cquity method is not applied.

TERS Interpretation 23 Uncertanity over loncome Tax Treatments

This Interpretation addresses the application of recognilion and measurement provisions under TAS 12 when there is
uncerlainly over meomes lax realments.

TFRS 1) Consolidated Financial Statements and TAS 28 (amendments) Sale ar Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

This amendment clarifies that all profit or loss from the sale or contribulion ol assels belween an investor and ils associate
or joinl venlure are required o be recognized by the investor.

Amendments to THMS 1?2 Employee Benefits

The Amendments to 1AS 1% Lmplovee Denelits address the impact of the changes in defined benefit plans (one of the two
benelils provided alier employment relationship is ended: defined henefit plans and defined contribution plans) to the
recognition of the defined henefit plans, and TAS 19 has heen amended.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCTAT STATEMENTS (cont’d)
21 Basis of Presentation {cont*d)

216 Amendments in Standards and Interpretations (cont’d)

New and amended Turkish Financial Reporting Standards that are effective as of 2018 {contd)
Annual Lmprovements to TFRS Standards 200152017 Cyele

Annual Tmprovements o TFRS Standards 2015 2017 Cycle include amendments to TFRS 3 Business Combinations and
TIRS 11 Joint Arrangements in when a party that participates in, but does nol have joint control of, TAS 12 Income Taxes,
income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, and TAS 23 Borrowing Cosls in capilalized borrowing costs.

The polential impact of the mentioned standards, changes and improvements on the Group's consalidated financial position
and performance is evaluated,

2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
2.2.1  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits
at hanks and highly liquid short-term investments, with malurity periods of less than three months, which has insignificant
risk of change in fair valuc.

222 Trade receivables and provision for allowance
Trade receivables as a result of providing goods or services by the Group dircclly to a debtor are carried at amortised cost.

Provision for impairment of trade receivables is established if there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect all amounts due. The amount of the provision is the difference belween the carrying amount and the recoverable
amount, being the present value of all cash flows, including amounts recoverable from guarunlees and collateral, discounted
hased on the original cfleetive inlerest rate of the originated receivables al inception.

Tf the impairmenl amount decreases due to an evenl vceurring after the write-down, the release of the provision is credited
to other income in the current period.

The Group collects most of the receivables from domestic vehicles sales Urough the *Direct Dehit System™ (DDS). Within
this system which is also named as Dircet Collection System; the cantracted banks warrant the collection of the receivables
within the limits granted to the dealers. Trade receivables are transferred by the contracted banks to the Group’s bank
accounts at the due dates.

225 Inventories

Invenlories are stated at the lower of cost or nel realizable value. The inventories of the Group mainly composed of rucks,
small trucks, midi buses, pickups and spare parts which belong to those vehicles. The cost of inventories is determined on
the monthly weighted moving average method, Cost of the finished and work in process good include raw materials, direct
labour cost, related general production cxpenses and exclude the cost of borrowing. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the costs of completion and selling cxpenses. The allocation of fixed
praduction overheads Lo the costs of conversion is based on the normal capacity of the production [acilities, Idle time
expenses arising from the ceases in production other than planned in Lthe lactory™s annual production plan are nol associated
with invenlories and are recognised as cost of [inished goods,

AR
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NOTE 2 -BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIATL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
22 Summry of Significant Acecounting Policies (cont™d)

2.2.4  Property, plant and equipment and related depreciation

While property, plant and equipment are presented on (inancial statement according to the adjusted values based on the
ffects af inflation as 031 December 2015 for the assets acquired before 1 January 2005, they are presented on the linancial
statements by deducting accumulated depreciation {rom cost values for the assets acquired after 2005, As of 31 December
2017, lands and buildings have been monitored by revaluation method. Depreciation is caleulated using the siraight-line
method based an their cconomic lives. The following rates, determined in accordance with the economic lives of the lixed
assels, are used in calculation of depreciation:

Type Depreciation rates (%)
Land [mprovements 720
Buildings 2-10
dachinery and Lguipment 10-25
Maotor Vehicles 10-25
Furnitures and Fixmures 10-20
Oither Properly, Plant and Equipment 1i-20

Revaluation Method

1.and and buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or [or administrative purposes, are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of revalualion,
less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Revalualions are performed
with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amounts do not difler materially from those that would he determined using
fair values at the end of cach reporting period.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of such land and buildings is recognized in other comprehensive income
and acowmulated in equily, except to the cxtent that it reverses a revaluation decrease [or the same asset previously
recognized in profit or loss, in which case the inerease is credited to profit or loss 1o the extent of the decrease previously
expensed. A decrease in the carrying amount arising on the revaluation of such land and buildings is recognized in profit
or loss ta the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the properties revaluation reserve relating to a previous
revalualion of that assct.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognized impairment loss. Cost includes prolessional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalized in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such properlies are classificd to the appropriate categuries of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended use. Diepreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready [or their intended use.

Drepreciation on revalued buildings is charged to profit or loss. On Lhe subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued property,
the altributable revaluation surplus remaining in the properties revaluation reserve is translerred directly to retained
earnings.

Freehald land is not depreciated. Fixtures and equipment ave stated al cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Fxcept for land and investments in progress, cost or valued amounts of property, plant and equipment arc depreciated on a
straight-line hasis over Lheir estimated uselul lives. Fxpected usclul life, residual value and depreciation method ave
reviewed every year for the possible effects of the changes in estimates and accounted for prospeetively il there is a change
in the cstimales.

Assers held under finance leases are deprecialed over their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assels,
However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership will be oblained-by the end the lease term, assets are
depreciated over the sharter of the lease term and their useful lives.
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NOTE 2 -BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
22 Summary of Significant Accounting Policics (cont’d)
224  Property, plant and equipment and related depreciation {cont’d)

Bevaluation Method (cont’d

Diepreciation caleulations have been made for buildings subject to revaluation as ol 31 December 2018 by taking intwo
consideration their remaining usefil lives.

An item of properly, plant and equipment is derccognized upon disposal or when no luture economic benelils are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retivement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
15 recognized in profil or loss.

2.2.5  Intangible assels and related amortisation

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried al cost less acoumulated amaorlizalion and
aceumulated impairment losses. Amortization is recognized on a straight-line hasis over their estimated useful lives. The

eshimaled uselul life and amortization method ave reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in cstimate being aceounted lor on a prospeclive basis,

Intangible assets are comprised of sofiware programme rvights, brand and patent rights and development expenses,
Amortization is caleulated using the straight-line method based on their ceonomic lives unless they exceed live years,

2.2.6 Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an sequisilion ol a business is carried al cosl as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of inpairment (esting, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's cash-genevating units {or groups of
cash-generating units) that is expeeted to benefit from the synergies ol the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which poodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when
there s an indication thal the unil may be impaired, [ the recoversble amount of the cash-generating unil is less than its
carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated o the unit
anel then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss
lor goodwill s recognized directly in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of profit or loss . An impairment loss
recngnized for goodwill is not reversed in subscouent periods.

O disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goadwill is included in the determination of
the profit or loss on disposal,

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate is described under “Tnvestments in associates”
heading,

2.2,7 Tmpairment of assets

All assets are reviewed lor impairment losses including property, plant and equipment and inlangible assets whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicale thal the carrying anount may nol be recoverable, [ such an indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the assel is presumed, The recoverable amount is presumed in each year-end for unusable
intangible asscls. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the carrving muount of the assel or a cash
gencraling unit related Lo the assel exceeds ils vecoverable amount, which is the higher of an asset’s net selling price and
value in use. Impairment losses ave recognised in the statement of income. Impairment losses on assets can be reversed, to
the extent of previously recorded impairment losses, in cases where inereases in lhe recoverable value ol the asset can be
associaled with evenls that ocour subsequent 1o the period when the impairment loss was recorded,

228  Bank loans and borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognised nitially at the proceeds received, net of transaction costs incurred, In subsequent periods,
borrowings are staled al amorlised cosl wsing the elleotive yield method; any difference between proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the statement of income oyer the peripld of the borrowings,
When il comes (o the assets which take long lime to get ready 10 usage and sales, to production or
consttuclion are integrated o the cost of the assel.
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NOTE 2 -BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
22 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

2.2.9 Taxes on income

Tax liahility on current perind's profit or loss includes current period lax and delerred tax. Current year tax liahility consists
ol tax liability on the taxable income caleulated according to currently cnacted tax rates and Lo the elfective lax legislation
as of halance sheet date,

Deforred tax is provided, using the liability method, on the temporary differences between the carrying values ol assels
and liahilities and their carrying. The tax value ol assels and liabilities represent the amounts that will affect the tax hase
in the fiuture periods related to the assets and liahilitics within the framework of tax legislation, Deferved tax is caleulated
over the tax rates that ave expected to apply in the period when the tax asset or the liability will be realized by taking into
consideration the tax rates and tax legislation in efTeet as ol the balance sheel date.

Ieferred tax liahilities are recognised for all laxable lemporary diffevences, where deferred tax assets resulting from
deductible temporary differences are recognised to the extent that it is probable that fulure taxable profil will be available
against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are only recognized Lo the exlent that it is probable that there
will be sullicient taxable profits against which to utilize the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expecled w
reverse in the forcsceable [ulure. Delerred lax assets and labilities related to Income faxes levied by the same taxation
authority are offset when there is a lesally enforceable right (o oltsel current tax assels against current tax liabilities.

2.2.10  Provision lor employee benefits

The Group is obliged ro pay termination indemnities to employees whose employment is terminated due Lo retirement or
due to reasons other than resignation or behavior specified in the Labor Code, in aceordance with the applicable law. The
retirement henefit abligation recognized in the consolidated statement ol financial position represents the present value of
the delined benefil obligation.

2,211 Pravisions

Provisions are recoonised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a resull of past events, ir is
probable that an oulllow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can be
made. Tf the provision amount decreases, in the case ol an evenl oceurring afier the provision is accounted for, the related
amount is classifisd as other income in the current period.

2.2.12  Rescarch and development expenses

Research expenditure is recognised as an expense as incurred. Cosls incurred on development projects {relating to the
design and tesling of new or improved products) are recognised as intangible assets when it is probabie that the project will
be a success considering ils conmmereial and technological feasihility, and only if the cost can be measured reliably. Other
development expenditures are recognised as expense as incuwrred. Subsidies received from Tlibitak are accounted for as
defierred income by Group and are offset with amartisation expenses in the income stalements in line with the useful life
of the completed projects. Development costs are directly recognised as expense. Development expenses recogniscd as
expense in prior periods are not subject to capitalisation in subscquent periods.

2.2.13  Warranty provision expenses

Warranty expenses are recognised on an geerual basis for amounts estimated based on prior periods® realisation.
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NOTE 2 -BASLS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont™d)
2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

2.2.14  Related parties

For the purpose of these consolidated financial statements, sharcholders, key management personnel and board members,
in each casc together with their families and companies controlled by/or aftiliated wilh them, and associated compunies are
considered and referred Lo as related parties. The transactions with refated parties for operaling activities are made with
prices which are convenient with market prices.

2.2.15  Foreign currency transaclions

I'ransactions in forcign currencies during the year have been translared at the exchange rates prevailing at the dates ol the
transactions. Monetary asscts und liabilities denominated in foreign currencies have heen translated into 'L at the Central
Bank ol Turkey's exchange rates prevailing at the halance sheet dates. Foreign currency exchange gains or losses arising
from the setilement of such fransactions and from the translation of monctary assels and liabilities are recognised in the
stalesent of income.

2.2.16  Earnings per share

Earnings per share disclosed in the statement of income are determined by dividing net earings by the weighied average
number of shares thal have been ontstanding during the related year concerncd.

Tn Turkey, companies can increase their share capital by making a pro-rata distribution of shares ("no-par shares") to
existing sharcholders from retained earnings and the revaluation surplus. For the purpose of earnings per share
computations, the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year has been adjusted in respect of bonus
sharcs issues without a cowresponding change in resources. by giving them retroactive effect for the year in which they
were issued and for cuch earlier year.

2.2.17  Revenue recognition

First-time Adoption of TFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Linpact an the Financial Slatements

As a result of the adeption of TFRS 15, some changes have oceurred in the accounting policies as of | January 2018 and
within the scope of transitional provisions of TFRS 15 the Group is required to recognize the sales of commercial vehicles
and service extended under warranty as revenue to be recorded in the consolidated statement of profit and loss in the
relevant period.

As aof the lirst application date | January 2018 the Group has carricd out studies to evaluate TFRS 15 “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers” which replaces *TAS 18 Revenue” and presented it in profit or loss in accordance with TFRS
15,

Warranties given for sales caunot be purchased scparately. These warranties are assured that the products sold are in
compliance with the pre-determined conditions. Tn this respeel, the Group will continue (o recognize the warranty
provisions in accordance with the provisions of the existing TAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liahilitics and Conditional
Assets,

Commrercial veliicle and spare part sales
The Group recognizes income accarding to the acerual basis, when the Group reasonably determines the income and

ceonomic benefit is probable. Group's revenues are comprised of sales of commercial vehicles und the spare parts of those
cammercial vehicles, Revenne is reduced for customer returns and sales discouns,
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCTAL STATEMENTS (cant’d)
1.2 Summary of Significant Aceounting Policies (cont®d)
2.2.17  Revenue recognition (cont'd)

Firsi-time Adoption of 'TFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (cont’d)

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when all the following condilions are gratificd:

* Ihe significant risks and the ownership of the goods are transferred to the buyer,

* The Group refiains the managerial contral over the goods and the effective control over the goods sald,
- The revenue can be measured reasonably,

. Tt is probable that the ceonomic benefits related to transaction will flow to the entity,

. The costs incurred or will he incurred in conjunction with the transaction can he measurad reliahly,

Service rendering

When the revenue fiom services can be measured reliably, the revenne is recorded in accordance with its completion level,
If the revenue cannol be measured reliably, revenues are recognized as much as the recoverable smount of expenses thal
are associated with these revenues.

Inrerest incame

Interest income is accried on a tiime basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate thal discounts the estimated fulure cash receipts irough the expected life ol the lnancial assel
to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Dividend fncome

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to recoive payment have heen cstablished.
Rent incane

Bent income from investment properties is recognized on a straight-line hasis over the term of the respective lease.

When there is significant amount of cost of financing included in the sales, the fair value is determined by discounting all

probable fiuture cash flows with the wvield rate, which iz embedded in the cost of financing. The difference is mcluded in
[inancial statements on accrual basis,

2.2.18  BReporting ol ¢ash lows

In the statement of cash Oows, cash (ows during the period are classilied under operating, investing or financing activities.
The cash flows raised from operating activities indicate cash flows due to the Group’s operations,

The cash flows due to investing activitics indicate the Group cash Nows that are used for and oblained rom investments
{investmeants in property, plant and equipment and financial investments),

The cash flows due to financing activities indicate the cash obtained from financial arrangements and used in their
repayment,

ash and cash equivalents include cash and bank deposits and the invesiments thal are readily convertible inlo cash and
highly lignid assets with less than three months to maturity.

2.2.17  Contingent assets and labilities

Possible assets or obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will he confirmed only by the oceurrence or
non-oeeurrence of one or wore uncerlain future events not wholly within the control of the Group ave not jncluded in the
consolidated financial statements and treated g5 conlingent assels or liabililies.
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NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCTAL STATEMENTS (cont*d)
2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting "alicies (cont’d)
2220 Government Granls

Giovernment grants are not recognized until there is reasonable assurance that the cntily will comply with the conditions
altaching to them and the grants will be received. Government grants are recognized as income over the periods necessary
to mateh tiem with the related costs, which they are intended to compensate, on 4 systematic basis. Guvernment grants and
assistance recelved for R&D purposes of the Group are explained in Maote 12,

2.2.21 TFRS 9 Financial Instruments

TFRS 9, Financiul instruments; effective [ram annual periods beginning on or after [ January 2018, This slandard replaces
the guidance in TAS 39. It includes requirements on the classification and measurement of financial assets and liabililies,
it also includes an expected credit losses model that replaces the current incwrred loss impairment model. Group has earricd
out valuation studies to determine the cumulative effect of the first transition and concluded that no changes should be
made 1o the consolidated lnaneial statrements.

Financial assets

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value, except for trade receivables that do not conlain
significant financing companent. The Group measures trade receivables at their transaction price if the rade receivables
do nol contain a signiticant financing component in accordance with TFRS 15 (or when the entity applies the praclical
expedicnt) at initial recognition.

In the initial measurament of financial assers except at Gxir value through profit or loss, transaction costs directly attributable
1o the acquisition or export of such assets are added to or deducted from the fair value. Financial assets thal are traded in
the normal course arc recognized at the date ol the ransaction {delivery date),

The Group reclassifics financial assets as subscquently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income or (air value through profit or loss on the basis ol botl: (a) the Group’s business model for managing the financial
assets, and (b} the conlractual cash flow characleristics of the financial asser, When, and only when, the Group changes its
husiness model for managing financial assets, il reclassifies all aflected financial assels. The Croup applics the
reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date. The Group does nol restate any previously recognised zains,
losses (including impairment gains or losses) or inferest.

Financial asyels measired at amoriized cost

A finaneial asset is measured at amortised cost if both of the following condilions are met:

{a) the financial assel is held within a business model whose objective is to hold linancial assets in order o collect
contractual cash flows and

{h) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash {lows that are solcly payments of principal
and interest an the principal amount nutstanding.

Interest revenue of financial assets measured at amortised cost is caleulated by using the effeclive interest method. This is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount ol a linancial asset excepl for:

{a) purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets. For those financial asscls, the Giroup applies the credit-adjusted
ellective interest rate to the amortised cost of the [inancial asset rom initial recognition.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
2.2 Summary of Significant Aceounting Policies (cont’d)

2,221 TFRS % Financial Instroments (cont’d)

First-time adoption of TFRS 9 “Financial instruments® (cont’d)

Financial assels {eon’d)

{b) [inancial assets that arc not purchased or orizginated credit-impaired financial assets but subsequently have become
credit-impaired financial assets. For thosc (inancial assets, the Group applies the effective interest rate to the amortised cost
of the financial asset in subsequent reporting perinds.

When the conlractual cash flows of a financial assel are renegotiated or otherwise modilied and the renegotiation or
modification does not result in the derecagnition of that financial assel, the Group recaloulates the gross carrying amount
ol the financial asset and recognises s modification gain or loss in profit or loss,

The Group dircetly reduces the gross carrying amount of & linancial asset when the Group has no reasonable expectations
of recovering a financial assel in its entirety or a portion thereof,

Fingneiol assers measwred gt fiir value throueh other comprehensive income

A financial assel is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if hoth of the {ollowing conditions are met:

{a) the financial assct is held within a business model whose abjective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash fows
and selling linancial assets and

{1} the contractual terms ol the financial asset give rise on specificd dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and inlerest on the principal amount oulstanding,

A gain or Joss on a [inancial asset measured at fair value through other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income, except lor impairment gains ar losses and forcign exchange pains and losses, until the [inancial
assel is derecognised or reclassificd. When lhe [inancial asset is derecogniscd the cumulative gain or lToss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equily to profit or loss as a reclassilication adjustment, If
the fnancial asset is reclassified oul of the fair value through other comprehensive income measurement category, the
Company accounts [or the cumulative gain or loss thal was previously recognised in other compreliensive income in the
financial statements. [nterest calenlated nsing the effective inlerest method is recognised in profit or loss,

At initial Fecognition, the Company may make an inevocahle election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent
changes in the [air value of an investment in an equily instrument that is not held for trading.

Financial aesely measared of fair value through profii or loss

A (inuncial asset shall be measured at Gadr value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income,

I'inancial assets that arc not designaled as an effective hedging instrument against financial risk arc also classilied as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, The related financial assets are presented with their fair values and the
sains and losses arising from the valuation are recognized in profit or loss.

Limpairimant
™
M’saj_muﬂrﬂzed cost

The Giroup recogmiscs 4 loss allowance for expected eredit losses on financial assets dl
or fair value through other comprebensive income,
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont*d)
2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {cont'd)

2.2.21 TFRS 9 Financial Instrnments {cont’d)

Firsi-time adaption of TFRS 9 “Financial instruments™ (cont’d}

The Group applies the impairment requirements for the recognition and measurement of a loss allowance for financial
assets that are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. However, the loss allowance is recognised in
other comprehensive income and does not reduce the carrying amount of the financial asset in the statement o linancial
position.

Al each reporting date, the Group measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal lo the liferime
expected credil lusses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly sinue initial recognition,

11, at the reporting date, the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since imitial recoguition, the
Crroup measures the loss allowanee for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses
except for purchased or originated credil impaired financial asscts. For purchased or ariginated credil-inpaired financial
assets, the Group only recognizes the cumulative changes in lifetime expected credil losses since initial recognition as a
lnss allowanee at the reporting date.

The Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected eredit losses for trade receivables, contract
assels and lease receivables that do not contain a significant {inancing component, which is referred as simplificd approach.

Vinancial liahilitics

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. During initial recognition of financial liabilities not designated [air
value through profit or lass, all dircetly atlributable transaction costs relaled to underwriting of financial liabilities, added
to Lhis fair value.

The Group classifies all financial lizbilities as subsequently measured al amortised cost, except for:

(a) financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: Such liabilities, including derivalives that are liabilitics, are
subsequently measuved ar fair value.

(b) finuncial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a linancial asset does not qualify for derecognition or when the
continuing involvement approach applics. 11 a transfer does not result in derecognition hecause the Company has retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the transferred assel, he Company continues Lo recognise the
transterred asset in its entirety and recognises A financial liabilily [or the consideration received. In subsequent periods, the
Company recognises any income on the transferred asset and any expense incurred an the financial liability.

(c) contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which TFRS 3 applies. Such contingent
consideration is subsequently he measured al fair value with changes recognised in profit or loss.

The Group does not reclassify any financial lability,

Recowaition and derecognition of inancial asseis

The Group recognises a financial asset or a [inancial liability in the stalement of financial position when the Group hecomes
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The Group derceognizes a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows [rom the asset expire, or when it transfers the financiul asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards ol ownership of the assct to another party. Tf the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asscl, the Group recognizes its retained inlerest in the asset
and an associated liabilily for amounts it may have lo pay. 1f the Group retains substantiaily all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues (o recognize the financial gsset and alsgrrecognizes o
collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received, The (roup only derscognizes the obligati i
in lhe contract is lifted or canceled or if it expircs on Lime,
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

22,22 Accounting Policies, Changes in Aceounting Estimates and Ervors

Accounting estimates are made based on reliable nformation and using appropriate estimation methods, However, if new
ot additional information becomes available or the circumstances, which the initial cstimates based on, change, then the
estimates are reviewed and revised, if necessary, 1f the change in the accounting estimates is only related to a sole period,
then only that period’s financial statements arc adjusted. If the amendments are related to the current as well as the
fortheoming periods, then hoth current and forthcoming periods” financial statemenls are adjusted. In instances where the
accounting estimates affect both current and forthcoming periods, then deseription and monetary value of the eslimale is
disclosed in the notes o the [inancial statements,

With the 29 Diecember 2017 dated resolution of the Board of Directors, it is decided that properties that were stated under
“Property, Plant and Equipment” in the Group’s financial statements and classified as lands and buildings that were carried
at cost, will be evaluated and recognized with revaluation method as of the 31 December 2017 financial statements prepared
according to Turkish Accounting Standards/Turkish Financial Reporting Standards (TASTFRS). In this scope, the ellea
of revaluation is represented in 31 December 2017 financial statements regarding the 5 February 2018 valuation reports
prepared by SOM Gayrimenkul Degerleme ve Damsmanlik Hizmetleri A5 TL 417,373,045 net amount of revaluation
increase after tax is recognized in "Property, Plant and Fquipment Revaluation Increase” under Lquity,

2.2.23  Other Accounting Estimates

In instances where the accounting estimates affeet both current and fortheoming perinds, then deseription and monclary
value of the estimate is disclosed in the notes to the financial siatements except instances where the estimation of the effect
related to upcoming periods are not possible.

a) Diclerred tax assets can be recognised only when sullicient taxable profit is likely to occur in the upeoming perinds.
Tt a lax advantage is likely, delerred tax assets are caleulated based on the deductible financial lusses. As of 31
Diccember 2018, the Group recognised deferred tax assets of TL 128,649,816 (31 December 2017: TL 126,418,854)
hased on Lol deductible financial losses of TL 26,242,335 (31 December 2017: 1L 26,080,108) as sulficient
taxablc prolit is likely to oceur in the upcoming periods..

by The Group determined the warranty provision based on warranty costs for cuch vehicle model in previous years and
the remuining warranty periods for each vehicle,

) Tlsetul lives of property, plant and equinment;
The Giroup revicws the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting peried.
The Company may shorten or prolong the useful lives and related depreciation of property, plant and equipment by
taking inlo consideration the inlended use of property, plant and equipment, technolopical progress according to
their types and other actors.

d} Revalation of land improvements and buildings:
Land improvements, evaluation of buildings and machinery have heen made by taking into consideration the current
market condilions. As a result of the revaluation, provision for impairment of the fixed assets with fair value lower
tian the cost value is made,

The Group's land improvements and buildings have bheen revalued by independent appraisals accredited by the
Capital Markets Board. The Group's land improvements and buildings have been revalued by independent appraisals
accredited by the Capital Markets Board, The revaluation fund which is compased of the difference belween the
book value and the fair value is offset with delerred tax and shown under the equity as revaluation find. Revaluation
15 performed periodically.

£) Estimatad inpatrnent of soodill
The Group annally tests goodwill for impairment. The recoverahle amounts ol cash generating unils are determined
based on the caleulations of value in use. The estimation usage vequired by these caleulatiows is disclosed in Note
12
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont*d)

2.2.24  Ewvents alter the reporting period

Suhsequent events and announcemenls relaled (o net profit or even declared after ather selective financial inlormation has
been publicly announced, include all events that take place between the balance sheet date and the date when the halanec
sheet is authorised for issue.

In the case that events requiring an adjustment to the consolidated linaneial statements occur subsequent to the halance
sheet date, the Group makes the necessary corrections on the consalidated financial statements,

NOTE 3 —-SEGMENT REPORTING

The field of activity of the Group cstablished in Turkey is the manufacture, assembly, import and sale of motor vehicles
and spare parts, The field of activity of the Group, the nature and ceonomic properties of products, production processes,
classification secording Lo custoner risks and methods used in the distribution of products are similar, Moreover, the Group
iz structured on an activity basis rather than being managed under separate divisions including different activities. Thus,
the operations of the Group are considered as a single activity division, and the outputs of the Group’s activities,
determination of the resources Lo be allocated to these activities, and review of the performance of these activities are
evaluated accordingly.

NOTE 4 - CASH AND CASH FQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash cquivalents presented in the consolidated cash flow statements as of 31 December 2018 and
31 Trecember 2017 are as follows:

31 December 20018 31 December 2017

{ash 35,442 150,444
Banks-Demand Deposits 10,910,388 19,257,596
Banks-Time Deposits (up to 3 months) 5,072,854 78,968,916
Oher Liquid Assets (%) 387345 111,886
Total 24,506,029 98,468,592

{*) As ol 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the halance in *Other Liquid Assets™ is consist of directly debting system
assefs in bank of group.

There wre no blocked deposits as of 31 December 2008 and 31 December 2017,

Cash and cash equivalents presented in the consolidated cash [Qow statements as of 31 Tecember 2018 and 31 December
2017 are as bllows:

31 December 2018 3 December 2017

Liguid Assels 96,506,029 98,468,802
Interest Accroals (<} {24,341} 431
Tatal (Fxcluding interest aceruals) 96,451,488 98,357,461

The details of time deposits are as follows:

31 December 2018 31 December 20107
Amount in TL  Annual Interest Rate Amount in TL Annual Interest Rate
) (%)
TL 46,747,044 15.00-23.4% 53,952,431 T00-15.50
UsD - - 17.746,481 0,25-4.20
EUR 38,325,810 0.05-1.00 7.270,004 0.10
Total R5.072.854 T5.968.916

Lime deposits are composed of

The Group does nol have any time deposits with maturities longer than one month, and (
fixed interest rates.
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NOTE 5 - FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
The details of hank loans a5 of 31 December 2018 and 31 December 20107 are as follows:

Short-term Bank Loans

Annunal
Effective Interest Rate (%) Original Currency Amount in 11,
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
218 2017 2018 2017 2018 017

Short-term Bank
Loans
EUR 4.7 2.40 27.318.167 43 043,730 64,673,508 144,363,965
TL: 2303 1297 ART.629.410 49 211,169 387620410 49,211,169
Total 552,303,318 243,575,134

As ol balance sheel dates, bank loans wilh vartable interest rates are as follows:

Period 31 December 2018 3 December 2017
$e,640,0823 10,019,792

LI to one month
Tuotal 54,649,083 14,019,792

Lang-Term Hank 1.oans

Annuoal
FAfective Interest Hate (%) Oriminal Currency Amount in TL
3 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
018 2017 2018 2017 2018 . 2017

Long-term Bank
Loans
EUR 4,85 2492 15,000,000 11,333,333 90,420,000 A1L175.667
TL - 14,85 - 1 38,000,000 - I 38,000,000
Total Q0,420,000 189,175,667

The maturity of all long-term bank loans is 2020,

Financial net debt reconciliation as of 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 is as Tollows:

2018 2017
Opening balance - 1 Januwary 432,750,501 370,245,358
Interesl expense A8.307.579 31,944 319
Interest paid (49,864,395} (28, 712.376)
Mewly oblained credits SOL.511,800 165,965,100
I.nans repaid (A 10,428, 8007 (1533,875,000)
Lixchange difference 110,252,333 47,183,600
Closing balance — 31 December 642,723,318 432,750,801
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NOTE & - TRADE RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Trade receivables at period ends arve as follows:

Short-term Trade Receivables 31 December 2008 31 December 2017
Trade RBeceivahles rom Third Parties 235,218,363 320 0353874
‘I'rade Receivahles from Relaled Parties 8.021.207 2344615
Rediscount Expenses () (4,356 400) (6.083,978)
Doubiful Receivables 175,000 175,000
Allowance for Donhtful Receivables {-) (175,000 (175,000}
Total 238,583,170 325,294,511
Movements of provision for doubtfil receivables arc as follows:
2018 2017
Opening Balanee — 1 January 175,000 333,324
Collections in the Terind - (158,324)
Clusing Balance — 31 December 175,000 175,000
Trade reccivables ul period ends are as follows:
Trade Payables 31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Trade Payables 1o Third Parties 213,553,886 RT.G12,457
Trade Payables to Related Parlies 109,509,354 209.917,665
Rediscount on Trade Payables (-) (2,776,321) (650,776)
‘Total 320,286,921 296,879,346

Disclosures on the nature and level ol risks in trade receivables arc given in Nole 27,

NOTE 7 - OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Other Short<term Receivables 31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Oiher Reecivables from Third Parties

Dae from Persounel 668,284 615,767
Receivahles from Tax Office (%) 40 655834 262,841
Deposits and Guarantess Given = 14,037
Total 41,324,118 802,645

{#) As of 31 December 20118, the amount of Group’s receivables was TI. 39,610,027 which consists of the receivables
related to the VAT refund request (31 December 2017 TL 110,0007,

Other Long-term Receivables 31 December 2018 31 December 20017
Other Reeeivables from Third Parties

Dieposits and Guarantees Given 186 186

Taotal 186 186
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NOTE 7-0OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES {cont™d)

Other Short=term Payahles
Other Payahles to Third Parlies

Pagze Mo: 246

31 December 2018

31 December 2017

Payables Under Employee Henefit 6,115,150 4,531,279
Tax and [unds Payables 044 298 1,138,780
Oher Miscellenous Payables 34,460 32,623
Tolal 7,093,948 5,702,682

NOTE. & - INVENTORIES

Inventory balances as of period ends are as follows:

31 December 2018

31 Decemhber 2017

Eaw materials 156,880,979 133,064,444
Work in process goods 1,162,353 6,300,127
Finished goods 183,893,976 HEL315. 468
Trade goods 49960, 148 33,701,823
Oither inventoery |, 799,729 [, 199 2493
Cioods in Lransil RO.017.661 S1,892.430
Impairment in Finished Goods and Trade Goods (792E04) (807,323)
Tolal 481,922,342 337,260,267
Movement of Provision for Inventory Tmpairment 2018 2017
Opening Balance — 1 January /07.A23 1,214,070
Provision released () (333,080) (406,747}
Cugrent Perind Tmpairment (+) 318,261 -
Closing Balanee — 31 December 792,504 807,323
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NOTE 10 - INTANGIBLE ASSETS

31 December 2018

Research & Other
Development Intangible  Construction
Cost Value  Righis Operations Assels  in Progress {*) TOTAL
Opening Balance as at 1 Janmary 201§ 3?{!?_{]1!? 73,279,357 18,324,258 24 870,334 116,843,956
Additions 438,213 - 3,154,318 IR200,062 41,793,693
_Transfer from Construction in Progress - 29,568,329 796,990 (30,365,319) -
Closing balance as at 31 December 2018 808,220 102,847,686 22,275,566 32,706,177 158,637,649

Accumulated Amaortization

Opening Balance as at 1 January 2018 (45,518) (42.363,735) {_LD,MZ,ZBS) - (53,301,538)

Charge for the period (30,369)  (10,752,930) (2,591,931} - (13,775,230}
Closing halance as at 31 December 2018 (125887)  (53,116,665) (13,834,216) - {67.076,768)
Carrying Value
Opening Balanece a5 at 1 January 2018 274,489 30,915,622 TA81,.973 24,870,334 63,542,418
Closing Balance as at 31 December 2018 652,333 49,731,021 8,441,350 32,706,177 91,560,851

{#) As ol 31 December 2018. TL 36,704,294 of the "Investment in Progress” amounts to RE&ED projecls and the remainder
relates to other inlangible assets.

Amounting Lo 1. 10,907,970 of the depreciation expenses of intangible assets has been charged to cost of sales, and TIL
353318 o research and development expenses and T 341218 to markeling expenses, TL 593,187 lo gensial
administrative expenses and TT. 1,579,537 (o B&D capitalization s of 31 December 201 8.
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NOTE 1t INTANGIBLE ASSETS (cont'd) -
31 December 2017
Research & Other
Development Intangible  Construction
{nst Value Rizhis Operations Assels  in Progress (%) TOTAL
Opening Balance as at 1 January 2017 367,311 61,404,133 12,099,141 19,037,099 92,907,684
Additions 2,600 - 1,791,470 22142 106 23,930,272
Transfer from Construction in Progress 11,875,224 4 433 647 (16,308,871} &
Closing Balance as at 31 December 2017 370,007 73,279,357 18,324.258 24870334 116,843,958
Accumulated Amorlization .
Opening Balanee as at | January 2017 (67,598) (33,328,537) (%.822,102) - {42,218,23T)
o Charge lor ll]f:_PEl'iljd §27.920) (9.035,198) (2,020, 183) - (110833013
Closing Balance as at 31 December 20017 (95,518) {42,303,735)  (10,842,283) - (53,301,538}
Carrving Yalue
Opening Balance as at 1 January 2017 209,713 2H.075,590 3277039 19,037,099 50,680,447
~Closing Balance as at 31 December 2017 274,489 30,915,622 7,481,973 24,870,334 (3,542,418

(*) As of 31 December 2017, TL 24,631,962 of the "Investment in Progress” wnounts 1o R&D projects and the remainder
relates to other inlangible assets.

Amounting to 1T, 9,406,787 of the depreciation expenses of intangible assets has been charged to cosl of sales and TL
532,889 to research and development expenses and 1L 82,086 to marketing expenses, TL 802,625 to general adminisiralive
expenses and TL 258,914 to RE&ED capitalizalion as of 31 December 2017,

NOTE 11 - GOODWILL

Asol'31 December 2018, there is goodwill amounted o 11 2,340,995 (31 December 2017 T1 2,340,995). The Group hus
caleulated the recoverable amaount of gondwill and no impairment is recognized. Tn this caleulation, a discount rate of 25%
{20017: 25% per annum ) was uscd with S-vear cash flows preparcd based on the budgers approved by the munagement.

NOTE 12 - GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND INCENTIVES

The cash support amount, which was colleeted from TUBITAK in relation to R&D activities in 2018, is the TL 484,841
I'he cash support amount, which was collected from TUBITAK in relation to R&D activiticsin 2017, was the 1. 675,296,

The Group has R&LD expenses which can be ulilized for tax caleulations with an amount of TL 101,193,235 as of 53]
Necember 2018, As per amendiment made in Article 35 of Lthe Law on Supporting Rescarch and Development No. 5746
which became effective on | April 2008, R&T) deduction rate from which will be benefited for the expenses ol R&D has
been increased from 40% to 100% (TL 41,180,482 as of 31 December 2017).

In order to benefit from the incentives and exemptions provided in line with the Law No. 5746, the Group applied to the
Ministry of Industry and Commerce to become an R&LD centre, On 3 June 2009, the Group was entitled to become an
R&D centre.

Regarding the 11, 5,606,548 spent as of 31 December 2018 in accordance with Incentive Certificate the Group has started
to henefit from the 20% investment incentive and 50% discounted corporate income tax incenlive within the framework
of Article 32/A of the Corporale Income Tax Law in proportion to the elfect of the investment on generaled income.
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NOTE 13 - PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Other Short-term Provisions 31 December 20018 31 December 2017
Warranty Provisions 0647216 11,642,227
Provision [or Lawsuits 4,355,690 3,567,284
_ Provision for Premiwm and Comission 3R89 869 109,869
Tuotal 14,392,775 15,319,380

Movements of provisions during the period are as follows:

. Frovision for
Warranty Provision premiym and

Erovisions  Tor Lawsuits Chmssian Total
Opening Balance as at 1 January 2018 11,642227 3,567,284 109,869 15,319,380
Addilions Duing The Period 10,433,281 2,200,003 389,869 13,032,243
Less: Paid During The Period {-) (12,428292)  (989.913) (109,869  (13,528,076)
Reversal of provision (=) - (430,772) - {430,772y
Closing Ralance as at 31 December 2008 9647216 4,355,690 359,860 14,392,775

Warranty Provision f%ﬁ

Provisions for Lawseits ) ission Tatal
Opening Balanee as at 1 January 2017 12338519 1,710,144 - 14,048,663
Additions During The Period 9,854,703 2,216,245 [09.869 12,180,817
Less: Pauid During The Period (-) (10.,5350,995) (241,105) - (10,792,100)
Reversal of provision (=) & (118,000) - {118,000y
Closing Thalance a8 at 31 December 207 11,642,227 3,567,284 109,869 15,319,350

Lawsuits against the Group:

Amount of provisions allocated for the lawsuits which were filed against the Group as of 31 December 2018 and have not
coded as of the balance sheet date equals TL 4,355,690 (31 December 2017: TL 3,567,284}

Mortgages and guaranices on assets:

There are not any mortgages and guarantees on asscts.

Total insurance coverage on Asseist

Total insurance coverage on assels is 1L 812,616,800 as ol 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017 T1 892 934,201,
Contingent liahilities which are not shown in labilities listed as follows:

Type 31 December 2018 31 December 2007

Given Letters of Guaranice 158,145,516 16,292,868
Tatal 158,145,516 116,292,868
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NOTE 13 - PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (cont’d)

Collaterals, pledzes and mortgages “CPM™ given by the Company as of 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 are
as follows:
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
A. CPMs given in the name of its own legal personality 158,145,516 116,292,868
i. Letier ol Guarantes 158,145,514 116,202 868
B. CPMs given on hehalf of fully consolidated companies g =
C. CPMs given in the normal course of business activities

on behalf of third partics - -
1, Tatal amount of other CPMVs e i
i. Total amount of CPMs given on behall of the parent i 4
i, Total amount of CPMs given to on behalfof
other Gromp companics which are not in scope o 13 and C - -

ii. Total amount of CTWs given on behalf of
third partics which are not in scope ol C " z
Total 158,145,516 116,292,868

The ratio of other CPM’s given by the Group to the Group®s equity is 0% as of 31 December 2018 (0% as of 31 December
2017).

The Group is exposed to foreign currencey risk since its foreign currency denominated ussels and labilitics are formed of
different currencies. Tnorder 1 hedge its foreign cwrrency position due to the flucluations in the foreign exchange parities,

the Giroup enters into forward contracts.

NOTE 14 - EMPLOYEL BENEFITS

Shori-term Provisions for Employee Benefits 31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Provisian for Wage Dillerential in Colleetive Labour Agresment - 2,452 546
Provision for Unused Vacation B43,195 655,450

543,195 3,107,996

Shart-term provisions for employee benefits consist of provisions that were caleulated and unpaid as of the end of period.

Long-Term Provisions for Employee Benefits 31 Necember 2018 31 December 2017
Provision for Employment Termination Benefits 23,885,435 19,448,903

Within the framewaork of current laws in Turkey, it is obligatory to make the severance pay of cach employee who has
completed one year service period, has been paid off regardless of any related reason, has been called-up for military service
along with men who have completed 25-year service period, women who have completed 20-year service period or those
who have completed age of retirement (38 for women, 60 for men). Beeause there is not any funding obligation for the
severance pay provision in Turkey, any special fund is not allocated in the financial slatements.

The severance payments are caleulated over 30-days gross salary for each service year, Primary aszumpiion is that ceiling
liahility set lor each service year increases in proportion to inllation, In parallel wath this, real discount rate which is cleared
of the potential inllation impacts is considered at the implementation stage. The severance pay cap is revised In every six
months, the ceiling amount of 11, 6,01 7.60 (1 January 2018 T1. 5,001.76) applicable as of | January 201 o has heen regarded
for the caleulation of the Group's provision of severance pay.

Moreover, the severance payments are not made for those who leave the job with hisfher wish; estimated rate related o
these severance pay amounts that will remain in the Group's account is considercd.

Considering the Liability of Severance Pay arc related to the next perivds as per TAS 19, current values of the severance
pavmenls which will be made as of the balance sheel dale are caleulated to delermine an approximate inllalion expectation
whose net dillerence refers a real discount rate and find an appropriate discount rate.

The actuarial assumptions considered in the caleulation of the provision for employment fermination béhelits are as follows:
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NOTE 14 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS {cont’d)
31 December 2014

31 December 2017

Annual Met Discount Bate (%) 364 4.2
Turnover Rale to Lstimate the Probability of Retirement (%) 399 3.08
The provision caleulated by estimating the present value of the future probable abligation of the Group arising from
the relirement of the employvees is recoghised to the consolidated financial statements,
Movements of the provision lor employee termination benelil during the period are as follows:
2018 2017
Opening Balance — 1 January 19,448,903 13,931,300
Service cost 3,202,747 3,554,527
Tnterest cost 802,937 525,710
Gain/(loss) on Remeasurement of Defined Renefit Plans 3,724,197 4.154.043
Reliremient payiment paid (3,293,349} {2,721,680)
Closing Balance — 31 December 23,585,435 19,448,903
NOTE 15 - OTHER ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Prepaid Expenses 31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Advances Given ML A16, 548 10,334,103
Prepaid Insurance Expenses 181,116 84319
Prepaid Advertisement Expenses 315378 455,026
Prepaid Subscription Fxpenses 27,240 24,691
Prepaid Comission Expenses - 3,904,729
Prepaid Other Fxpenscs 1,300,213 484 869
Total 22,340,495 15,287,737
Other Current Assets 31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Delerred VAT 06,633,534 30.804,274
Oither Currenl Assets B10,824 360,963
Total 67,446,358 40,165,237
Prepaid Expenses 31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Prepaid Fapenses 2,059,179 13,733
Total 2,059,179 13,733

Deferred Income (Short-Term)
31 December 2018

31 December 2007

Advances Beceived 6,309,007 27731, 167
Deferred Ineome (*) |4.436.701 2,773,875
Tatal 20,745,708 30,505,044

(*) The amount of cash incenlives received for the company’s R&L activities, and which should be transferred to the income
statement for upcoming months as of 31 December 2018, is TT. 360,791 (31 December 2017; R&D cash supporl income that

will be tranaforred Lo the income statement for upeoming months is TT. 419,046).
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NOTE 15 - OTHER ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (cont’d)

Deferred Income (Long-Term) 31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Deferred lncome (#) [ 1,436,255 642247
Taotal 11,436,255 642,247

(*) The amount ol cash incentives received for the company’s R&T) activitics, and which should be transferred Lo the income
statement for upcoming months as of 31 December 2018 15 TL 590,029 {31 December 2017: TL 562,948).

NOTE 16 - SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND OTHER EQUITY TTEMS

Capital / Elimination Adjustments

As 0f 31 Decamber 2018 the share capital of the Company is TL 84,000,000 (31 December 2017: TL 84,000,000).

In 2017, the Group’s shate capital has been increased from TI. 25.419.707 (TL 56,752,454 of which is from the capital
adjustment difference, 1,827,839 of which is from restricted reserves appropriated from profit and prior years’ profitloss
caleulations) o 84,000,000 by providing from internal resources.

This share capital is divided into 8.400,000,000 in total, including 4.515,314,511 A Group registered shares, 2498204 573 B
Group registered shaves, 1,386,481,116 C Group bearer's shares, cach with nominal value of | {one) Kr. The distribution of

this share capital on the basis of share oroup is as [ollows,

31 December 2018

SHARI:
SHAREHOLDERS GROUPFA GROUPE GROUPC A}% SHARIE (%)
AG ANADOLU GRUBU LIOLDIMG A8, 44,844,772 - LLG90,620 46,535,401 55.40
[SUZU MOTORS LTD. - 14,273,309 - 14,275,509 16.99
ITOCHU CORPORATION TOKYO - 7048322 - 7.948,322 046
ITOCHU CORPORATION ISTANBUL - 2758212 - 2.758.212 3.8
GER 308,473 - 12,174,183 12,482,556 14.87
TOTAL 45,153,145 24,982,043 13,864,812 84,000,000 100.00
31 December 2017
SHARE

SHAREHOLDERS GROUPA GROUPER GROUPC AMOUNT  SHARE (%)
AG ANADOLU GRUBTTHOLDING A8, 44,844.772 - 1,690,629 46,535,401 55.40
[STI71 MOTORS L1, - 14,275,500 . 14,275,500 16.99
FIOCHTT CORPORATION TORKYO - 7548322 i 7.948.322 0,46
ITOCHU CORPORATION ISTANBUI, - 2758212 - 2758212 328
OTHER BUARER SHARES 308,373 — 12,174,183 12,482,556 14.87
TOTAL 45,153,145 24,982,043 13.864,812 84,000,000 TO0.00

The amount T1. 84,000,000 corresponding to the share capital of the company, is fully paid up a3 [ree from any misleading
transactions. The Company is not included in registered capital system.

Privileges Granted fo the Shave Groups

The Company is directed by the fourteen members of the Hoard of Directors elected among sharcholders by General
Assembly in accordance with the regulations of Turlish Commercial Code,

Liomr memhers ol the Board of Directors are clecled from the candidates nominated by the shareholders of Group I and the
remaining members of the Board of Directors are clected from the candidates ftgminate the shareholders of Group A
by the General Assembly,
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NOTE 16 - SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND OTHER EQUITY ITEMS (cont'd)
31 December 2018

Paid-in Capital

Capital Inllation Adjustinent Difference

Reserves on Betained Laming

Retained Farnings / (T.osses)

Giain on Revaluation ol Properly, Plant and Equipment
{Losses) on Remeasurement of Defined Benctit Plans
Met Profil { Loss) for The Period

84,000,000
30,149 426
162,221,926
(60,331,98Y)
417,373,045
(8,265.743)
(67.225.774)

Shareholders’ Equity Attributable to Equity Holders ol the Group 557,920,880
Non-Controlling Shares -
Total Shareholders™ Equity 557,920,886
31 December 2017

Paid-in Capital £4,000.000
Capital Tnflation Adjustment Diflerence 30,149,426

Reserves on Retained Farning
Hetained Earnings / {Losses)

162,175,629
(11,897 328)

Gain oo Revaluation of Troperty, Plant and Eguipinent 417,373,045
(T.osses) om Remeasurement of Defined Benetit Plans (3,280,390)
MNel Profir (Loss) for The Period (48,388,364
Sharcholders’ Equity Attributable (o Equity Holders of the Group 628,126,018
Non-Controlling Shares -
Total Shareholders® Equity 628,126,018

Hestricted Reserves Appropriated from Profit
Restricted reserves approprialed [rom profic are comprised of legal reserves and olher reserves,

31 December 2018

31 Pecember 2017

| esal Reserves 23,784,673 23,738,381
I2eal Fstate Sale Profit Exemplion 135,437,248 138,437 248
Total 162,221,926 162,175,629

Code (“TCC™), The TCC stipulales thar the first legal reserve is appropriated out ol statatory profits at the rate of 5% per
annum, until the total reserve reaches 20% of the Company’s paid-in capital. The sceond legal reserve is appropriated at
the rate of 10% per annum of all cash distributions in exeess of 5% ol the paid-in capital, Tnder the TCC, the legal reserves
can be used only to offsct losses and are not availahle for any other usage unless they exceed 30% of paid-in capital. In
addition, the Group®s profit on the sale ol real estace, which is considered to be within the scope ol Arlicle 5fe of Carparate
Tncome Tax Law Mo, 5520, is classified under this sccounling calegory as a “leal estate sale profit cxemption™. As ol 31

December 201 &, the Group’s total réstricted reserves are TL 162,221,926 (31 December 2017: T1 162,175,629).
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NOTE 16 - SIHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND OTHER EQUITY ITEMS (cont’d)
Rerained Earnings /Losses

Retained earnings is comprised of extranrdinary reserves, miscellancous inflation differences and alher prior years®
InCome.

The Group’s prior years” income details as of period ends are as follows:

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Lixtranrdinary Reserves 9,601,444 b.661.440
Legal Reserves [nflalion Difference 24,820,489 24,820,415
Retained Farnings / {Losses) (94, 813,924) (46,379,189}
‘T'otal (60,331,959 (11,897,318)

Quoted companies make profit distributions as follows:

1f the amount of profit distributions caleulated in accordance with the net distributable prolfit requirements of the CMI3 does
not exceed the statutory nel distributable profit, the otal amount of distributable profit should be distributed. However, no
profit distribution would be made ifany financial statements prepared in accordance with the CWE or any slatutory accounts
carrying net loss [or the period. Tn accordance with the CMB’s decision dated 27 January 2010; it is decided nol o bring
any obligation for any minimum profit distribution about dividend distribution which will be made for publicly owned
COMPEanics.

Inflation adjustment on Equity; the carrying smount of extraordinary reserves could have been uiilised in issuing bonus
shares, cash dividend distribution and offsetting accumulated losses. However, equity inflation adjustment differences will
be liable to corporate tax if it is used in cash profit distribution.

Group’s relained earnings is TL 60,331,989 based on the [inancial statements prepared in according with TAS/TFRS
Vinancial Reporting Standard for the period ended 31 December 2018,

Tn accordance with the Communigué No:X1-29 and related announcements of TAS/IFRS, effective from 1 January 2008,
“Share Capilal”, “Restricted Reserves™ and “Share Premiums” shall be carried at their stautory amount. The valuation
differences (such as diflerences from inflation adjustment) shall be classified as follows:

- “the dillerence arising from the “Paid-in Capital” and not been transferred to capital yet, shall be classified under
the “Capital Adjustment to Sharc Capilal™;

- the difference due to the inllation adjustment of “Resiricted Reserves” and “Share Premium” and (he amount has
nat heen utilised in dividend distribution or capital increasc yel, shall be classified under “Retained Farnings™. Other
cquity items shall be carried at the amounts calculated based an CMB Vinancial Reparting Standards.

NOTE 17 - REVENTUE AND COST OF SALES

Bvent I January 2018 1 January 2017
evenue 31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Domestic Sales 736,727.927 TROARL081
Foretgn Sales 528,831,949 230,532,668
Oither Income 0.9%6,220 0,825,860
Sales Total (Gross) 1.275.556,094 1.026,73%,600
Sales Discounts (-) (87693310 (64,613,147
Sales (MNet) 1,187,862,785 063,126,462
Cost of Sales (994,834,345) {838,161,920)

124,964,542

Gross Operating Profit 193,028.440
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NOTE 17 - REVENUI AND COST OF SALES (cont’d)
Cost of sales are summarised as follows;

Cnst of sales

Feaw Materials and Supplies Expenses

1 January 2018
31 December 2018

748,330,869

1 January 2017
3 December 2017

aa7.920.918

Direet Labor Expenses 53,805,678 43,702,406
Depreciation and Amorlizalion Lxpenses 24772 541 18,874 430
Other Production Costs 13,180,956 12,223,630
Total Cost of Production 840,000,044 Td2,721.,390
Change in Goods Tnventory (24.401,253) 5.717.385
Cnat of Trade Goods Sald [ 78,068,379 RR.029.978
Cost of Other Sales [.077.175 1,693,167
Cost of Sales 994,834,345 838,161,920

NOTE 18 - ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES, MARKETING EXPENSES, RESFARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

EXPENSES

ajResearch and Development Kxpenses

1 January 2018
31 December 2018

1 January 2017
3 December 2017

Personnel Expenses {363.917) (372043
‘I rade (roods CQuzlily Enbancement Fxpenses {1.015.46%) {971.030)
Diepreciation and Amortization Expenses (Wotes 9-10) (727.24%) (R0G.633)
Other (A01.731) (0428370
Total Research and Development Expenses (2.908.363) (3.192.545)
biMuarketing Dxpenses
Dontestic Sales Fxpensc (1L,857417 (1.678,768)
Lxport Fxpense (12459294 (6,279,570
Persannel Expenscs (15,809.963) (12,715,740)
Advertizement Expenses (6,794, 841) (7,287,097
Guarantee Expenscs (10,429 498%) (9,854,141
Lreipht And Expressing Expenses (10,059,601 (066,284
Royalty Fxpenses (4,190.378) (5,852,288)
Amottization Expense {MNotes 9-10) (2,554,129) (1,224,762)
Other (13,350,195} (12,606,408)
Total Marketing Expenses (77,505,316) (67,465.058)
clreneral Administrative Ixpenses
Personnel Lxpenses {17.864,617) (13,940,219
Pravision [or Employes Termination Benelils [345,413) (766,180)
Busincss and Service Hxpenses (17,201,874) (15,999.981)
Depreciation and Amaortization Expenses ({INotes 9-10) (1,709,353) (1,5%89,823)
Insurance Fxpenses (2,355,647} (1,828,231)
Other (B,488,016) (7,546,019)
Total General Administrative Expenses (47,965,122 {4 L670,453)

Page No: 37
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NOTE 19 - EXPENSES BY NATURE
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I January 2018

31 December 2018

1 January 2017
31 December 20017

Dircet Raw Material and Supplies Costs 748,330,869 667,920,918
Cost of Trade Gooads Sold | 78,068,379 28,029,978
Cost of Other (oods Sold 1 077175 1,693,167
Change in Finished Goods and Semi-Finished Goods (24,4001,253) 5,717,383
(ither Expenses 89,003,960 80,912,654
Personnel Expenses RE. 189,588 71,496,588
Diepreciation And Amortisalion Expenses 29763 473 22405 656
Other Production Expenses 13,180,957 12,223,630
‘Total Expenses 1,123,213.148 950,489,976

Lxpenses by nature include cost of goods sold, marketing, selling and distribution expenses, general administration

expenses and research and development expenscs.

NOTE 20 - OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Other Ineome from Operating Activities:

1 January 2018
31 December 2018

1 January 2017

31 December 2017

Forcign Exclhiange Tncome on Trade Receivables and Payables 74,409,060 13,825,756
Discount lncome an Trade Payables 8,921,845 3,889,310
Sale Support Income 09,204,567 -
Service Income 179,802 436,278
Incentive [ncome - I, 168,834
MLSS Incentive - 537.5365
Tubilak K& Incentive 16,013 617,787
Export D.I.LL Support B78,660 479,561
Released Provisions = 158,323
I2ent Tncome 279 628 F0,000
Insurance Tndemmity licome 44 116 40,250
Oither Tncome 7,044,567 2,295,214
Tatal 102,483,000 24,518,878

Other Expense from Operating Activities:

Foreign Lxchanze Expense on Trade Receivables und Payables

(111,564.820)%

(27371,660)

Discount lncome on Trade Beceivables L5007 170y (6,720,531
Dopnations and Contributions (34,2500 (1229613
Other Expenses (1.856,013) (832,209)
Total (118,462,257 {35,047.361)

Py

\
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NOTE 21 - INCOME AND EXPENSES FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Income From Investing Activities

Giain on Sale of Machinery and Equipment

1 January 2018
31 December 2018

1 January 2017
31 December 2017

726,273

169,402

Total

726,273

169,402

Fxpenses from Invesiing Activities

|.ass on Sale of Machinery and Equipment

1 January 2018
31 December 2018

(306,332)

Total

(304,332}

[ Junuary 2017
31 December 2017

(278.394)
(278,394)

NOTE 22 - FINANCTE TNCOME

Finance Tneome:

I Banuary 2018
31 December 2018

1 Junuary 2017
31 December 2017

Interesl Income 6,985,048 6,360,714
Delay Interest Income 4 489 R57 3,070,852
Foreign Exchange Gain 76,904,569 25,883,604
Tatal B8.379.474 35315170

NOTE 23 - FINANCE EXPENSES

Finance Fxpense:

1 January 2018
31 December 2018

1 January 2017
31 December 2017

Interesl Expense {56,360,201) (28,547,012)
Forcign Lxchange Tosses (154.078.767) (69,672.970)
Lxpense from Derivative Transaclions (691,432) (2.056,672)
Forward Purchase Expense {1,97,378) (3,397,307}
Orther Finance Expenses (4,872,029) (1.932,917)
Total (218,149.807) {105,600.878)

NOTE 24 - ‘TAXATION ON INCOME (INCLUDING DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES)

The Group’s lax expense (or income) is comprised of current period corporate tux expense and deferred tax cxpense (or

income).

Kb . | January 2018 1 January 2017

31 December 2018 31 December 2007

Current Tncome Tax Provision (- {262,785) {136,265}
Defarred Tax Income { (Expense)

- Profit or |Loss Statement 13,716,965 20,040,598
Tax Income ! (Expense) — Income Statem.ent 13,454,180 19,904,333
Tax Income [ {Expense) N .

— Oither Camprehensive locome Statement T44 830 (35,196,757}
‘Total Tax Income / (Expense) 14,199,019 (35.292,424)
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NOTIE, 24- TAXATION ON INCOMY: (INCT TDING DEFERRED TAX ASSITS AND LIABILITIES) (cont’d)

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Currenl Corpaorate T'ax Provision 262,785 136,265
T.ess: Prepaid Taxes and Vands (1.098.6146) (1,064,023
Tax Pavable {B35,831) (927.758)

As of 31 December 2018, the amount of corporale tax paid in advance is amounted to TL 835,831 which is portion of
exceeding the corporation Lax amount to be paid and it is meluded in the Assers Related to Current Period Taxation.

i) Provision for Curreni Period Tax

The Group is subjected to Corporate Tax in Turkey, Necessary provisions in supplementary financial statements have been
made for estimaled tax liabilities regarding Group’s operations in the current period.

The corporate tax to be acerued over the laxable profit is caleulated by adding non-deductible expenses to the accounting
profit; deducting invesiment and research and development allowances, income that is notl subjected to taxation and the
dividends received, trom companies located in Turkey, from the accounting profit,

Consolidation principle is not utilized to prepare financial statements relaled o tax that is effective in Turkey.

The effective tax rate in 2018 is 22% (2017 20%),

Aceording to the provisional article 10 added to the Corporate Tax Law, a corporate tax rate ol 22% will be taken aver the
corporate earnings of the corporate taxpayers for the 2018, 2019 and 2020 accounting periods.

Tax losses can he carried forward to ollsel against future taxable income lor up Lo five vears, However, tax losses cannol
he carricd back o offset profits from previous periods,

According to Corporate Tax Law’s 24th article, the corporate tax is imposed by the taxpayer’s tax returns, There is not an
exact mutual agreement procedure with Tax Authorities in Turkey. Annual corporale fax returns are submitted to Lhe
relating tax offices until the 25th of April in the following year. Tax authorities have the right Lo audit tax declarations and
aecounting records for 5 years, cand may issue re-nssessment hased on their lindings,

Income Withholding Tax:
In addition to corporate tax, companies should also caleulate income withholding tax on any dividends und income
distributed. The rate of income tax withholding is 13%.

i) Breferved Tax

The deferred tax asset and lax lability are based on the wmporary differences, which arise between Lhe financial statements
prepared according to TAS/TFRS s accounting standards and stalulory (ax financial statements. These dilferences are
usually due to the recognition of revenuc and expenses in different reporting periods [or the TAS/TFRS standards and Lax
PUTpOECE.

Timing diflerences are result of recognizing certain income and expense items dilferently {or accounting and tax purposes.
l'iming differences are calculated off of the tangible fixcd assels (except land and buildings), intungible fixed assets, stocks,
the revaluation of prepaid expenses, discount of receivables, provision for termination indemnities, and previous years’
lnss. Every accounting year, the Group reviews Lhe delerred tax asset and liabilitics, where the deferred tax assets cannol
he used against the fulure taxable income, the Group writes-off the recorded deferred lax usset. Corporate tax rate used in
the calculation of deferred taxes is 22% for temporary differences ending in 2018, 2019 and 2020, and 20% for other long-
term lemporary differences,
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NOTE 21 “TANATION ON INCOMI: (INCLUDING DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES) (cont’d)

i) Deferred Tax feont 'd)

31 December 2018

31 December 2017

Cumulative Deferred Tuax Cumulative Deferved Tax

Temparary Assets  (Liahilities) Temparary Aszets /

Differences Lifferences {Liabilities)
Invienlories 739,530 162,697 6,836,054 1,503,941
Mon-Current Assels (Net) (517.378,544) {64,823,153) (520,585,471 {63,464 539)
Provision for Employment
Tormination Denefits 23,885,435 £ 777,087 19,448,903 3,889,781
Guarantee Provisions 0,647,214 2122388 11,642,227 2,561,290
R&D Discount 100,193,234 20,238,047 41,480,482 8,296,096
Current Year Financial Loss (%) 128,649,810 26,242 135 126,418,854 26,080, 108
Rediscount Fxpenses/Income (Met) [.461,611 321.554 5374801 182,436
Law Suit Provisions 4. 155,690 Q55,252 3,567,285 784 803
Oiher {Met) 15,770,600 3,469,532 789,085 173,599
‘Tatal (6,530,6461) (20,992,465)

{(* 1L is foreseen that the linancial loss of the current period will he completely lowered i the nexi 4 years.

Movement afDeered T Asts (bl
Opening Balance {20,992,4465) 14, 163,604
Deferred Tax (Expense) ( Tncome Charged to Profit or Loss 13,716,965 20,040,598
Deferred Tax Income Charged to Comprehensive lncome 74,839 (55,196,757)
Closing Balance (6,530,661 (20,9924 ﬁi;]

The reconciliation of the current tax expense willi the period profitfloss is as follows:

Reconciliation of Tax Provision:

1 January 2018- 1 January 2017-
31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Income { {Loss) from Continuing Operations (B0,679,954) (68,292,697)

Corporate Tax (20% or 22%) 17,749,590 15,019,066

T'ax Lifects of:

-R&:D Incentive 13,156,805 4,797,233

-B&D Support Income 113,523 123,557

-Financial loss not subject o delerred tax (%) (14,858,049} .

~Other (2,687.689) (35,523)
Income Tax Income Recognised in Profit or Loss 13,454,180 19,904,333

* The Group has ended the accounling of the deferred Lux asset amounting to TL 14,858,049 as of 31 December 2018 on

the total deductible linancial Inss amounting to 11 398 16.865 as of 31 Iecember 2017,

NOTT 25 - EARNINGS 'ER SHARE

1 January 2018 1 January 2017
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Mel Profit / (Loss) for The Period (67,225.774) (4B 388 3600
Weighted Average Number of Shares with Nominal Value of 1 £.400,000,000 §.400,000,000
Hiastre ~
Income / (1.oss) Per 100 Share with Nominal Value of T'T. 1 Each {(0:8003) y \ ﬁ|I {0.5761)
b
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NOTE 26- RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
a) Related Tarty Balances:

Group's receivables from related partics are mainly due to trade goods, service sales and rent income. Group’s payables to
related partics are mainly due to raw material, service purchases and rent expenses.

31 December 2018

Receivables Pavables
Balances with Related Parties Trade Trade MNon-Trade
Adel Kalemeilik San, ve Tic. A5 - 5319 -
AFH Sigorla Acenteliii A5, - 31,735 -
AG Anadolu Grobu Holding ALS. - 7.291 -
Anadolu Bilisim Hizmetleri A5, S0,945 - -
Anadoln Ffes Biracithk ve Mall Sanayi A5, 12,262 - -
Anadolu Motor Uretim ve Paz. A5, 217,279 - £
Celik Motor Ticarct A8, 61,918 - -
Efestur Turizm isletmeleri A5 - 123,061 -
Tauzn Maotors Co. Thailand Lid, - 325 -
Lsuzy Mators International Operation Thailand | O88.993 - -
Tsuzu Motors Lid. Tokyo - 69,803 -
ltachu Corporation Tokyo 6,589.510 107332716 -
Migros Ticaret ALS. - 367,531 -
Ortaklara Borglar (*) - + a,109
Itochu Corporation Shangai - 1,523,031 -
Owex Handels GMBLL - 48,344 -
“Total §,021207 109,509,356 9,109

(#*) Non-Trade Payables to shareholders balance is ¢lassified under other payables in balance sheet.

A1 December 2017

Receivables Payables
Balances with Related Parties Trade Trade Non-Trade
Adel Kalemeililk Tie. ve San: A5, - 13,393 -
AEH Sigorla Acentelifii A5, - 38,273 =
Anadoln Endiistri Holding A5, 3,333 - -
Anadolu Bilisin Hizmetleri A5 - a3, 980 -
Anadolu Efes Biracalik ve Malt Sanayi AS. 101,872 - -
Anadedu Motor Uretim ve Paz. A8, - 20977 -
elile Motor Ticarel A5, - TEA,259 -
Efestur Turizm Tsletmeleri A.S. ' - 142,632 .
Tswen Motors Co. Thailand Tatd, - 6,170 -
Tsuzu Motors International Operation Thailand 529 465 3,936,174 -
Lsuen Maotors Tad. Tokyo 673,618 3.013,604 -
Ttochu Corporation Tokyo 1,036,307 201,553,790 -
Migros Ticarct A5, - 332,405 -
Payables to Sharehalders (*) - - 9,104
Tatal B 2,344,615 209,917,665 9,19,

%) MNon-Trade Payables o Shareholders halance is classilied under other payables in bal

)
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NOTE 26 - RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (cant?cl)

I¥) Related Party Transaclions:

1 January-31 December 2018

Page No: 43

Goods and Fixed Assets Other  Total Fxpense/
Services Purchases Purchases

Sales to Related Parties Purchases
Anadolu Motor Uretim ve Pazarlama A5 360,684 - - a0, 684
Anadolu Lifes Biracihk ve Malt Sanayi A5, - - 43,130 43,130
Anadolu Biligim Llizmetleri A5, 71,639 - - 71,639
bligros Ticaret A5 - 101,400 - 101,400
AG Anadolu Grubu Holding AS. - 305,400 - 305,400
Celile Motor Ticarcl A5, 805,089 - 15,037 820,126
Tsueu Motors International Operation Thailand 3,228,112 - - 3,228,112
Tsuzu Motors Lid, Tokyo 15,198,274 - - 15,198,274
Hochy Corporation Tokyo 14,727,504 - - 14,727,509
Tuotal 34,301,307 406,800 S8,167 34,856,274
1 January-31 December 2017

Goods and Other  Total Expensef
Sales to Related Partics Services Purchases

Purchases
Adel alemeilik Tie. ve San. ALh, 3,028 - 3028
Anadolu Endistri Holding A5 16,298 - 16,208
Anadolu Bilisim Hizmetleri A5, 19,513 - 19,513
Anadolu Ffes Biracilik ve Mall Sanayi A5, 102,206 - 102,206
Tsuzu Motors Co. Thailand 1td. 131 - 1,311
lsuzu Motors International Operation Thailand 974,685 - 274,689
Tswen Maotors Lid, Tokyo 4,226,746 - 4,226,746
Ttncha Corporation Tokyo 2284981 - 2,284,981
Total 7,629,672 - 7,629,672

1 Jannary-31 December 2018
Purchases fram Related Parties

Adel Kalemeilik Tic: ve San, A5

Anadolu Biligim Llizmetleri A 5.

Anadolu Efkes Biracililk ve Malt Sanayi A5
AG Anadolu Grubu Halding ALS.

Anadolu Moator Tlretim ve Paz. A S,
Anadoly Saghlk Merkezi Tkitisadi [sletmesi
(Celils Motor Ticaret A5,

Ffestur Turizm Isletmeleri AL,

Tsuzu Motors Co. Thailand Lid,

Lsuzu Motors International Operation Thailand
Lsuzn Maotors Lid, Takyo

Lsuzu Motors Germany GMBH

ltochu Corporation Tokyo

Mizros Ticarct A5,

Oyex Handels Gmbh

Kipa Ticarel A5,

Total

Goods and  Fixed Assets Other Total Expense!
Services Purchases Purchases
Purchases
53,663 1,919 - 55,582
1,167,663 3,185 - 1,170,848
35,999 12,296 - 48,295
6,554,703 - - 6,354,703
115,818 - - 115,818
603 - - a3
2075067 - 93,706 2,168,773
4 209,663 - - 4,209,663
602,019 - - 602,019
120,429,394 - - 120,829,399
6,531,338 4 - 0,531,338
47,899 - - 47,899
202,716,307 f - 202,716,307
34,034 - - 134,034
60,358 - - 60,358
159 - ey 159
345,134,692 17,400 \ !l.!_u'?ﬂﬂll'\ ", 345,245,708



ANADOLU ISUZU OTOMOTIV SANAYE VE TICARET A5 AND ITS SUBSIDIARY Page No: 44
NOTES 1O THE AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBLER 2018

fAmounts expressed in Turkish Liva unless otherwise indicated. )

NOTE 26 - RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURLS (cont’d)
b} Kelated Party Transactions (cont’d):

1 January=31 December 2017

Purchases from Related Parties Croods and ixed Assets Oiher Total Expense/

Services Purchascs P'urchases

Purchases

Adel Kalemeilik Tic. ve San, A%, 31.862 " : 31,862
AFH Sigorta Acenteliil A5, = - 2437998 2,452,994
Anadolu Bilisim Hizmetleri A 5. 2,522,957 118,601 5 2,641,558
Anadolu Ffes Bivacilik ve Mall Sanayi A5, 11372 28117 - 30,489
Anadolu Endissted Lolding ALS. 5,763,379 4 7,440 5,770,769
Anadolu Motor Uretim ve Paz. AS. 25,404 - s 25,404
Anadoly Saglik Merkezi Tklisadi Isletmesi 2.106 . - 2,106
Celik Motor Ticarel A3, 1,297,937 - L1974 2,417,661
Efestur Turizm [sletmeleri A5 3,229,330 - 4 3,229,330
[suzu Motors Co. Thailand Lid. 32;5 13 . _ 12,513
lsuzn Motors International Operation Thailand 134,583,723 i z 134,583,723
Tsuzu Motors Lid. Europe . 4659 - = 4649
Tsuzzu Motors Ld, Tokya 9,699 380 . - 0,609,380
ltochy Corporation Toekyo 267,306,478 4 2 267.306,478
Migros Ticarel A3, 40,468 - z 40,468
Oyex Handels Gmbh 62,649 5 " 62,640
Kipa Ticaret AS. 136 136
Tatal 424,590.113 146,718 3,580,162 428,316,993

) Donations to Anadolo Egitim ve Sosyal Yardm Vakfi:

As per the the Main Arlicles of Association of the Group, at least 2% - 5% ol the Group’s profit before fax [iallowing the
distribition of 15t dividend shall be donated to Anadolu Egitim ve Sosyal Yardim Vak[i as long as it is subject to tax exemption.
Dionation was not made m Anadolu Egitim ve Sosyal Yardm Vak(i by the Group in 2017 (Donation was not made in 2017)

d) Key management compensation:

1 January 2018- 1 January 2017-

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Salaries and other short-term benefits 9,184,708 6,270,824
Tutal 0,184,708 6,270,826

The henelits provided to top management (General managers and Directors) inclide salarics, bonuses, pramiums, and the
employer's share ol social security.

NOTE 27 - NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
a) Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure Lhal entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
muximizing its profit and markel value through the optimization of the debt and cquity balance.

The Group’s cquily comprised of cash and cash equivalents in Note 4 and equity items in Note 16
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NOTE 27 NATURE AND LUVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

{a) Capital risk management (cont’d)

Risks, associated with each capital class, and Uie capital cost are cvaluated by the top management. Tt is aimed that the
capital structure will he sct in balance by means of new borrowings or repaying the existing debls as well as dividend
payments and new share issuances based on the top management evaluations.

The Group monitors capital by using debt to total capital ratio. This ratio is caleulated by dividing the net debt by lotal

capital. The net debt s caleulated by excluding the cash and cash equivalent amounts [rom the total debt amount {including
credits, leasing and commercial debts as indicaled in the balance sheet).

31 December 2008 31 December 2017

et et 06,504,210 631,161,255
I'atal Equity 557,920,586 628,126,018
Debt/Tulal Eguity 155 1.00

Increase of the rate ol net debits to equity compared to prior year arise from the periodical increase in using crudits,
Gieneral steatesy of the Group based on sharcholders™ equity is not different from previous periods.

The Group conducts hedging contracts (including derivative financial instruments) for the purpose of diversifying
forcign currency fluctuation risks,

(b)) Price risk

Fquity instruments which are classilied on Group®s halance sheet as availzhle-for-sale are subjected to price rislk, Tn
order to manage the price risk due to capital instruments, The Group has a limited number of financial assels which
are available-for-sale.

) larlet risk

The Group is subject to the financial risks related to the changes in the exchange rate (Please see (d) below) and interest
rate (Please sce (c) below) due to its operations and other (Please see {f) below). Also due to having linancial
instruments, the Group also bears the risk of other parties not meeting the requirements of agreements {(Mlease sce {g)
helow).

Market risks seen at the level of the Group are measured in accordance with sensilivity analyses.

The market risk of the Group incurred during the current year or the method of handling the encountered risks or the
method of measuring those risks are not different from the previous year.

(d} Voreign exchange risk management

Fareign currency Lransactions may resull in forgign currency risk,

The Group maintaing foreign currency time deposit accounts in banks as the Group has receivables and payables in foreign
currencies. As 1 consequence, the Group is exposed to forcign currency exchange risk due fo the changes in exchange ratcs

used for converting assets and liabilities into TL. Voreign exchange risk arises from {ulure trade operalions and the
differences between asscts and liabilities.
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{dy Foreign exchange risk management {cont’d)

Statement of Foreign Exchange Rate Sensitivity Analysis

31 December 2018
Profit / Loss

Appreciation of Foreign Appreciation of
Currency Foreign Currency
Tn casc ol US Dollar increases in 10% against TL;
| - TI5 Doelar Met Asset / {Liability} (400,151) 400,151
2 US Dolar Hedges (-) L =
3= Net Effect of TS Dollar (1 +2) {400,151 400,151
L gase of Furo increases in 10% against TL;
4- Furo Met Asset / (Liability) (16,731,963) 16,731,963
5- Furo Hedges (<) - -
6- Mot Bffect of Euro (445) {16,751,%65) 16,751,965
In case of other exchange rates increase in 0% against TL;
7- Other Exchanae Rates Met Asset ! (Liability) (6. 795,018) 6,795,018
&~ Other Lxchange Rates Hedges (<) - -
9. Net Effect of Other Fxchange Rates {(718) (6,795,018) 6,795,018
TOTAL (316+9) {23,947,134) 23,947,134

Statement of Forcign Fxchange Rate Sensitivity Analysis

31 December 2017

Appreciation of Foreign Appreciation of
Currency Foreign Currency
Tn case of US Dollar increases in 10% against TL;
[ - US Dolar Net Assct / (Liability) 1,833,670 (1,833,670)
2- US Dolar Hedges (<) & -
3- Net Effect of US Dollar (1 +2) 1,833,670 (1,833,670)
In case of Euro increases in | 0% against 17,
= Furo Mel Asset £ (Liahility) (34,043,127) 34,043,127
5- Ewrp Hedges (-) ; o
G- Net Effect of Euro (415) {34,043,127) 34,043,127
In case of other exchange rates increase in 10% against 11,
7- Other Fxchange Rales Net Asset / {Liability) (5.621,522) 5,621,822
8- Other Exchange Rates Hedgzes (=) = =
9. Nel Effect of Other Exchange Rates (7+8) (5.621,822) 5.621,822

TOTAL (3+6+9) (37.831,279) 37,831,279
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NOTE 27 - NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

{e) Interest rate risk

The Group is cxposed o interest rate risk due Lo variable and fixed interest rales. Group’s financial liabilities and assets
with fixed and variable interest rates {guarantee cle.) are respectively shown at Note 5 and Note 4.

Interest Rate Position Table
31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Finuncial Assets with Fixed Rales

Financial Asscls 83,072,854 TEUARS1H
Cash and Cash Equivalents {634,669, 115) (414,653,046)
Financial Liahilities With Variable Hates

Financial Assets - -
l'inancial Liabilitics (8,054 202 (18,097,754)

As of 31 December 2018, if the market interest rate had increased/decreased by 100 basis point with all other variables held
conslant, period income before lax and consolidated equity of participations of the Group would have been higher/lower by TL
80,542 (31 December 2017: TL 180,978).

([} Funding risk
The ability (o find the existing and prospective debt requirements is managed as necessary by obtaining adequate commitled
funding lines from high qualicy lenders.

(1) Credit risk management

Liolding financial instruments also carries the risk of the other party’s not mecting the requirements of the agreement. The
Group's collection risk is mainly derived from trade reccivables. I'rade receivables arc cvalualed by the management ol the
Giroup depending on their past expericnees and current economic conditions and are presented in financial statements when
necessary allowances for doublful receivables are provided,

Wost of trade receivables are comprised of receivables fram costumers who has given an adequale amount of guarantees. An
effective control system was established to colleet the recelvables. Credit risk arising from transactions is followed and these
risks are taken into account when assessing each debior. Because there are so many costumers, The Group’s credit risk is
dispersed and there is no important eredit risk concentration. Receivables [rom foreign customers as ol 31 December 201§ are
TT. 150,546,729 and there is no geographical concentration (31 December 2017: TL 60,206,153).

[ Receivables ]
Trade Receivables Other Receivables Deposics at
S Deteaiier JHA Helated Helated Bank Notes
] Party ither Party Other MNaotes
Maximum eredit visk exposed as of balanee sheet
date (ATRHCHDI 8,021,207 | 238KH3,1T0 41,324,304 95.085,242
|- Secured portion of the maximum credit risk by auarantees i
V. n J38.882.170 | - o -
A. Met hook value of financial assets which are undue or |
which is not impaired 8,021,207 | 209,868,867 141,324,304 | 6-7-26 [ 95983242 | 4
B, Book value of inancial assets which condilions are
vencgoliated, and which otherwise would be counted as
overdue or impaired | - " - -
., Net book value of assets, overdue bul not impaired 5 29,014,303 - =
- Sgcured by Guarantee, ete. - 20,014 303 5 - -
| . Net bool value of assets deerease in value - - - -
| - Orverduc (gross hook value) i - {175,000 = 1 -
- Tmpairtient {=) - 175,000 - | & -
- The Part of Net Value Secured by Guaraniee e, - - - -
= Tndue (pross book valne) = - - | - - - B
- Impairment (-] i = - | % E =
- The part of net value secured by guarantee cie. - | _0:
| E. Elements containing eredit rislk off the balanee sheet = ,.]ﬂ -
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NOTE 27 - NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cunt’d)

() Credit risk management (cont’d)

I_ o Receivables - |
. Trade Reeeivables Cither Receivables Deposits al |
31 December 2017 Related Related Banks MNates
Party Orther Party Other | Noles
Maximum credit visk exposed as of balance sheet
date (A+EHCHTMID 2,344,615 A2 0459 896 - RO2.R31 M,226,512
- Geenred portion of the maximum credit visk by guaranlees
VE, - 322919800 - - [ - |
A, Net book value of financial assets which arve unduoe or &-7- |
which is nol impaired 2544615 319,920,819 - H92831 [ 26 94,226,512 4
. Boolk value of financial assets which condilions are
renegotiated, and which otherwise would be counted as
averdue or impaired - - 2 i i 5
| €. Net book yalue of assets, overdue hut not impaired 5 5,029,077 - - - -
| - Secured by Guaranies, ¢, - 3025077 - - -
D, Net book value of assets decrease in value - - - - -
| = Owverdue (gross book valuz) £175,0007 | - [ -
- Tmpairmient {-) 175,000 - - [ -
| - The Part olMet Value Seoured by Guarantee ctc, - - i - -
- Undue {gross book valoe) i 2 - X, o
- lmpairment (=) = = = < =
- The part of net value secured by guaranies elc. - - - - - ]
|F. Clements containing eredit risk off the balance sheet | - = 5 = -
The ageing of trade receivables, overdue but not impaired, is as follows;
Heceivables
Trade Other  Deposits at
31 December 2018 Receivables Receivables Banks  Derivatives Other
Past due up to 30 days 26,112,873 = z % -
Pasl due 1 - 3 months 2,901,430 - = i d
Past due 3 - 12 months - - - - -
Pasl due 1 - § year . 5 - & g
Pasl due over 5 yoars - - - - i
Assets cavered portion with
_guaraniee letter ete. 29,014,303 - - - -
Receivables
I'rade Other  Deposils at
31 December 2017 Receivables Receivables Banks  Derivatives (her
Past duc up lo 30 days 2,726,169 # - - -
I"ast due | - 3 months 302,908 - - - 3
Past due 3 - 12 months - & = 2 =
Pazt duc 1 - 5 year S 2 T - -
Past duc over 5 years - = - B -
Assets covered portion with
cuarantee leiter ete, 3,029,077 - - - -

Tmpairment analysis on tade receivables is made over the ageing lable and though assessing the mansgement’s
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NOTT 27 - NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {cont’d)
{g) Credit risk management {cont’d)

The Giroup manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, and reserve borrawing facilities by continuously monitoring
forccast and actual cash Nows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilitics.

Liguidity risk tahles

Prudent liguidity risk management implics maintaining suflicient cash and cash equivalents and having the availability and
flexihility of funding through an adequate amount of {committed) credic facilities.

The risk of mecting existing and probable futore liabilitics is managed only by means of having access to sufficicnl number of
trustable credilors,

The table below indicates derivative and non-derivative financial labilities of the Group in terms of TL and maturity term,

3 December 2008

MNon-Derivative Financial Liabilities

w— Tutal B
Contract Terms ‘““—"T“ﬂg Contracted Less thin 3 St ld I__tn_S 5 Years +
I — Value S Months Maonths Years —— —
——— Cash Ouiflows A —y =
Bank Loans 642,723,318 664,959,719 186,190,469 333,902,438 94,866,811 -
I'rade Mayubles 320,286,921 323,181,710 246854441 76,327,269 - -
_Oither Payables 7,103,057 7103057 7,103,057 = - -

_Non-Derivative Financial Liahilities 970,113,296 905,244,486 440,147,967 460,229,707 94,866,811 -

Derivative Financial [iahilities
The Group does not have any derivative financial labilitics as of 31 December 2018,

31 December 2017

Non-Derivative Financial Liabilities

Total
AR o e Carrying Contracted Less than 3 Jiwol2 Livs -
Lontract 1ering Yalue Cash Months Maonths Years L iz
Quiflows
Bank Loans 432,730,501 473,282,703 6,106,256 231,938,970 205217477 -
Trade Tayables 206, 879346 207589044 OB634,100 198,954,944 - -
Other Payables 33,442,958 33,442,558 33,442,054 - - -

Non-Derivative Financial Liabilitie 763,073,105 804,314,705 148,183,314 450013914 205217477
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NOTE 27- NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCTAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)
(i) Credit risk management {cont’d)

Derivative Finaneial Liahilities

The Group docs not have derivative financial liabilitics as ol 31 December 2017,

Fair Value and Hedging Disclosures

The Group believes that registered values of financial instruments reflect their fair values,

Objectives of lnancial risk management

Finding access to financial markets and managing financial visks arisen from operational activilies of the Group lall under the
responsibility of the Group’s finance department, Aforementioned risks include markel risle (foreign exchange rislk, interest rale
risk and price risk), financial risk covers market risk (exchange rate risk, fair value of interest risk and price risk), credil risk liquidity
risk and cash 1low sk,

Dietermination of the fair value of financial asscts and liabilities are explained below;

Level 1: Valuation of the financial asscts and liabilities nver the slock exchange prices of similar asscts and liabilities resulting
from the ransactions in active marksts,

Level 2: Valuation of the financial assets and liabilities over the price calculated on the basis of the data that is directly or indircetly
ahservable in the market ather han the stock exchange price of the relevant asset or liahility delernmined on the first level,

Level 3: Valuation of the financial assets and liabilities carried out in the absence of obscrvable data in the market for determining
the fair vatlue of the relevant assel or liability,

Derivative Financial Instrumenis

In order to hedge these risks, the Group enters into forward foreign currency transaction agresments as a linancial instrument where
RECCHSHTY,

The Group docs not have forward exchange from derivative linancial instruments us of 31 December 2018 and 3 | December 2017,
NOTE 28- EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERTOD

Momne.
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